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of 1999) "PFMA" the Free State Gambling & Liquor Authority presents you with the attached report on its 

activities for the year 2012/ 2013 for your consideration and presentation to Parliament. 
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GENERAL INFORMATION 

A. SUBMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT TO THE EXECUTIVE AUTHORITY 

For submission to the Responsible Member for the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and environmental Affairs and 
in terms of Section 55(1) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999). 

APPLICABLE ACTS AND OTHER INFORMATION 

The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority ("the Authority") is a statutory body established in terms of section 4 of the Free 
State Gambling And Liquor Act, 2010 (act 6 of 2010) . Its primary objective is the control and regulation of gambling, racing 
and the liquor industry in the Free State Province. Other applicable Acts and Regulations are the National Gambling Amendment 
Act 10 of 2008, Public Finance Management Act, the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa and Treasury Regulations. 

MISSION STATEMENT 

To effectively and efficiently develop, transform and regulate the gambling and liquor industry to contribute towards accelerated 
shared economic and social growth in the Province. 

VISION 

To be a leading, and sustainable regulator of the gambling and liquor industry in South Africa . 

To achieve its mission , the Board has identified the following core values: 

Accountability 

Transparency 

Honesty 

Diligence 

Reliability 

Confidentiality 

Professiona lism 

Fairness 

Innovation 
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STRATEGIC OVERVIEW 

. . . .. ". 

The issues of Strategic importance facing the Authority will mainly revolve around balancing the issuing of liquor and 
gambling Licenses to deserving applicants and protecting the communities that we operate in from the proliferation of these 
establishments in their communities, leading to the well-known and documented social ills that come with both abuse of 
alcohol and compulsive gambling respectively. 

We as the regulator of the two industries in the Province, do not only have a Legal obligation to enforce the application of the 
law to the letter but we also have the moral obligation to ensure that we do not expose our communities to conditions that 
are only going to bring hardships on them . The Free State Gambling and Liquor Act, Act 6 of 2010, provides for measures to 
attain the goal of the Authority already articulated above in the main, but it also has to be augmented to deal adequately with 
the problems on the ground. One of the biggest challenges with regards to legislation in the Province is that our Licensees are 
regulated under two different Acts, some under The Free State Liquor Act, 27 of 1989 and others by The Free State Gambling 
and Liquor Act, 6 of 2010. The Authority has the prerogative to request either a conversion from the 1989 Act to 2010 Act or 
making those with the 1989 approved Licenses apply again . 

The two options mentioned above both have their pros and cons. Stakeholder engagements will be entered into to ensure that 
what obtains is in the best interest of the Free State. The Free State Gambling and Liquor Act 6 of 2010 is not without its 
pitfalls though. The Authority is however in a process of amending the Act by engaging the relevant processes. We are confident 
going forward that we have done enough groundwork and the regulatory framework will be much better, allowing for a smoother 
regulation of both industries. 

LEGISLATIVE AND OTHER MAN DATES 

• Establishment 

- The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority was established as a juristic person by the Free State Gambling & 
Liquor Act 6 of 2010 

- The mandate is to regulate the Liquor and gambling industries and collect revenue, thus contributing to the 
provincial fiscus 

• Powers and Functions of the Authority 

- Invite Applications for Licenses or accept any applications without such invitation 

- Consider, grant or refuse applications 

- Cancel, suspend, vary, renew or revoke a license or registration approved 
OBJECT: 

• In relation to Liquor 

- Reduce Socio Economic and other costs of alcohol abuse 

- Promote the development of responsible and sustainable liquor industry 

• In relation to gambling 
- Implement national norms and standards in the gambling industry 
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FOR EWORD BY THE CH AIRPERSON 
I am pleased to present the Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority's Annual Report for the financial year ended 31 March 
2013, to the Free State Provincial Legi slature, the Member of the Executive Council responsible for Gambling and Liquor 
regulation in the Province and the public. 

The main core objectives of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority are to reduce the socio-economic and other costs of 
alcohol abuse and to ensure that society and t he economy are protected against over-stimulation of latent demand for gambling. 
We are proud to report that we are reaching some milestones in addressing the teething challenges as the merged entity. The 
new Board was appointed with effect from 1 August 2012 to ensure alignment with the Act and to improve the manner in 
which we deliver services to the majority of our stakeholders. New Board members were inducted by the former Member of the 
Executive Council and specific training on gambling was also conducted to empower Board members to be geared towards the 
new categories of challenges confronting the regulation of gambling. 

The Board considers respo,nsible corporate governance to be integral to the success of the organisation. The Board has established 
four sub-committees which cover the fields of Audit and Risk, Finance and I.T, Operations and Corporate Services. 
It gives me pleasure to announce that the process for the finalisation of the second route limited machine operator licence is 
at an advanced stage and will be finalised in the new financial year. 

The process for the amendment of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Act by the Department of Economic Development, Tourism 
and Environmental Affairs is underway and will be finalised in the next financial year. This is aimed to bring clarity and align it 
to the relevant National legislation. 

We also focussed our energies on the education programme to reach out to our stakeholders, to enable public participation in 
the consideration of applications for registration. 

Looking ahead the Board will give precedence to the following: 

Negotiating the signing of memorandum of understanding with SALGA 
Municipalities; 

Introducing the Bingo policy; 

Issuing the Request for Proposal (RFP) inviting applications of 
Bookmakers from previously disadvantaged persons; 

Publishing new gambling fees; 

Identifying the location for the fourth casino licence in consultation 
With the relevant responsible Member of the Executive Council. 

The Board appreciate the hard work displayed by its staff and leadership on the onerous task to regulate both Gambling and 
Liquor disciplines which are very litigious and complex. We wish to express our sincere gratitude to the Honourable Premier 
of the Province, Member of the Executive Council for the Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Environmental 
Affairs and its staff for their support as well as the Honourable Chairperson and members of the Portfolio Committee for their 
mentorship and understanding and looking forward for further improvement in discharging our mandate. 

~ 
Chairperson of the Board 
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICE R'S OVERVIEW 

• •• 

It has been two years since the Entity Free State Gambling And Liquor Authority came into being after the amalgamation of two 
public Entities, the Free State Gambling and Racing Board and the Free State Liquor Authority. The road has been arduous but a 
lot of lessons have been learnt. We came from a position where the administration of liquor did not come off a solid base with 
no database of licensees and a huge backlog in the processing of liquor license applications. It is a requirement that all licensed 
liquor outlets in the Province be inspected to check compliance with license conditions and other laws and regulations. Being 
a geographically vast province that we are, which goes across 5 districts, the Executive decided that the Free State Gambling 
and Liquor Authority should establish regional offices so that service delivery could be enhanced to the constituencies we serve. 
The IT infrastructure, which is the heart of support to the core business in service delivery is obsolete and as a result, not much 
support could be given to the Authority on that front. 

Despite all the challenges mentioned above, the Authority has been able to make great strides towards achieving what it's 
mandated to do. A comprehensive and reliable liquor license database is in place and is being updated regularly, in that way, 
we not only know who our licensees are but also are able to organize and structure our monitoring of their compliance to 
their license conditions and all other relevant laws and regulations. The backlog with regards to processing of liquor license 
applications has been severely dented and the Authority continues to prioritize same. The rollout of the Limited Payout Machines 
has been a bit slower than anticipated. This could be as a result of the Licensee not being able to come up with suitable sites 
that comply with requirements of all of relevant Authorities, e.g. Local Municipalities. 

The establishment of Regional offices to equitably serve the whole Province was not without its difficulties . Because the 
Authority does not have office space of its own in those areas, lease agreements took long to conclude. It gives me great 
pleasure to announce that in all five regions, the offices have been established, capacitated as much as possible, save the 
challenges already mentioned, but we are en route to conquer and deliver the desired level of service to our Communities. 

Our principals are concerned about the proliferation of liquor outlets in our communities, a position that we share as the 
Authority. The laws governing the issuing of licenses to new entrants are very clear as to what the requirements are. For the 
new applications, we are not issuing licenses to applicants within the residential areas. To this effect, the Authority refers all 
the applications to the Designated Municipal Officer to among others, ensure that the zoning is correct for the licensing of 
such establishments. Unfortunately, in the past, licenses have been granted to liquor outlets where they are a nuisance to the 
communities. The Act is now very clear on how far these establishments must be from places of learning and places of worship. 

Our administration is falling into place, the learning curve in terms of simultaneous administration of liquor and gambling by 
one entity has been significantly decreased. It is with this in mind that I believe we are in good shape not only to deliver on 
our mandate going forward but also to be an example of how good governance can be attained doing the right things right. 

I also want to take this opportunity to thank the Board of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority, Exco,the MEC for 
DETEA, the Premier of Free State province for their unwavering support. The hard work done by the colleagues at the Authority 
is also acknowledged. 

Hoping for an even better 2013/ 14. 

Ms. Matilda Gasela 
Chief Executive Officer 



STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY 

The members of the Board are responsible for monitoring the integrity and preparation of the financial statements and the 
related information included in the annual report. 

INTERNAL AND ACCOUNTING CONTROLS 

In order for the Board to discharge its responsibilities, Management has developed and maintains on an ongoing basis, a series 
of internal and accounting controls, which have been designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability 
of the financial records of the Board and to safeguard and maintain accountability of the Board's assets . 

Management and the Finance and Audit Committees of the Board regularly review the risk management policy and system of 
internal control and these are modified and improved as operating conditions change. 

To this end, a comprehensive budgeting and reporting system has been developed which operates within strict deadlines and 
monitored by the Finance and Audit Committees of the Board . 

The Board's internal audit function was outsourced to Morar Inc, which conducted the internal audit in accordance with the 
standards, set by the institute of Internal Auditors and conveyed its findings to the Audit Committee and the Board. Where 
significant areas of concern were revealed by the internal audits conducted during the reporting period, they were duly followed
up by Management. 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with Statements of Generally Recognized Accounting Practice and 
the reporting requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) ["PFMA"] . 

The annual financial statements are prepared in accordance with appropriate accounting policies detailed in the notes thereto 
and which are supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, and fairly present, in all material respects, the 
Authority's financial position and the results of its operational activities as at 31 March 2013 . 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis as the Board Members have every reason to 
believe that the Authority has adequate resources in place to continue operations for the year ahead. 

The annual financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2013, were approved by the accounting authority in terms of 
section 51 (1) (f) of the PFMA and are signed on its behalf by: 

D. Pillay 
Chairperson 

AN NU A L R EP ORT 2012 -201 3 

M. Gasela 
Chief Executive Officer 

Ill GE N E R A L INFORMATION 





REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
We are pleased to present our report for the year ended 31 March 2013 . 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS AND ATTENDANCE 

The Audit Committee is constituted in terms of the provisions of section 51(1)(a)(ii), read with section 77 of the Public Finance 
Management Act 1 of 1999 and Treasury Regulations 27 and operates within that framework. The Audit Committee consists of 
the members listed hereunder and comprises of three (3) independent members and two (2) non-executive Board members Ms. 
S. Monyaki and Mr. M. Molotsi (untill August 2012) and Ms. G. Duda (since 1 August 2012) . For the year under review, four (4) 
meetings were held. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEMBERS (2012 - 2013) 

Ms. Daphline Ewertse (Chairperson & External member) 
Mr. Ritondeni Luvhengo (External member) 
Mr. J. Human (External Member) 
Ms. Seithati Monyaki (Board member) 
Ms. Gugu Duda (Board member) 

Audit Committee Members who resigned 1 passed on during 2012/2013: 

Mr. Kenneth Elvis Ndleve (Chairperson) (External member) 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESPONSIBILITY 

The Audit Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from section 51 (1) (a) (ii) of the Public 
Finance Management Act (Act 1 of 1999) and Treasury Regulation 27 .1.10. 

The Audit Committee also reports that it has adopted Audit Committee Charter, has regulated its affairs in compliance with this 
Charter and has discharged all its responsibilities as contained therein . 

THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROL 

The Internal Audit through its reports to the Audit Committee and management highlighted areas where the internal controls 
were not appropriate and effective. Internal Audit has identified corrective actions and suggested enhancements to controls 
and processes that will mitigate the ri sk to the organisation once implemented . From the various reports of the Internal 
Auditors, the Audit Report on the Annual Financial Statements, the matters of emphasis and management letter of the Auditor
General, it was noted that there were significant or material non-compliance with prescribed policies and procedures reported. 
Accordingly, the Committee can report that the systems of internal control for the period under review were not effective and 
efficient though there is a significant improvement from prior financial year. 

The Entity has Ri sk Management in place. Although the risk management in the entity is not fully effective and efficient, there 
is a significant improvement in the ri sk maturity level of the entity and the entity runs a transparent risk management process. 
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EVALUATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The Audit Committee has : 

• Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor-General and the Accounting Authority the audited Annual Financial Statements 
to be included in the Annual Report; 

• Reviewed and discussed with the Auditor- General and the Accounting Authority the audited Annual Predetermined 
Objectives to be included in the Annual Report; 

• Reviewed the Auditor-General's management letter and management response; 

• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices; 

• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the prior year's Audit; 

• Reviewed the Entity's compliance with legal and regulatory provisions. 

The Audit Committee did not always receive relevant information timeously to enable it to carry its oversight responsibilities 
effectively. The Audit Committee concurs with and accepts the Auditor-General's conclusions on the Annual Financial Statements 
and is of the opinion that the audited Annual Financial Statements be accepted and read together with the report of the 
Auditor-General. 

Mme D. Ewertse 
CHAIRPERSON OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE 
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REPORT BY ACCOUN TING AUTHORITY 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

1. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant 
to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with Laws and regulations and internal control, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion . 

Predetermined objectives 

2. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 22 to 36 of the annual report. 

3. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent 
with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are 
measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant, as required by the National 
Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information. 

The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

4. The material findings are as follows: 

Usefulness of information 

5. The National Treasury Guide for the preparation of the annual report requires that explanations for variances between 
the planned and reported (actual) targets should be provided in all instances and should also be supported by adequate 
and reliable corroborating evidence. Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for 66% of 
the major variances as disclosed in the annual performance report. 

6. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI) requires that performance 
targets be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required Level of performance. A total of 47% relevant to 
Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services of the targets were not specific in clearly identifying 
the nature and the required Level of performance. This was due to the fact that management was aware of the 
requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application of the principles. 

The FMPPI requires that performance targets be measurable. The required performance could not be measured for a total of 47% 
relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services of the targets. This was due to the fact that 
management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application of 
the principles. 

7. The FMPPI requires that it must be possible to validate the processes and systems that produce the indicator. A total 
of 47% of the indicators relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not 
verifiable in that valid processes and systems that produce the information on actual performance did not exist. This 
was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary 
training to enable application of the principles. 
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8. The FMPPI requires that indicators should have clear unambiguous data definitions so that data is collected consistently 
and is easy to understand and use. A tota l of 47% of the planned indicators according to the annual performance plan 
relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not well defined in that clear, 
unambiguous data definitions were not available to allow for data to be collected consistently. This was mainly due to 
the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process. 

9. The FMPPI requires that the time period or deadline for delivery be specified . A total of 66% of the targets relevant to 
Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not time bound in specifying a time period 
or deadline for delivery. This was mainly due to the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during 
the strategic planning process. 

Reliability of information 

10. The FMPPI requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, 
indicators and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy 
myself as to the reliability of information presented with respect to programme 1: Administration and programme 4: 
Technical Services. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work due to the absence of information 
systems and due to the fact that the entity could not provide sufficient appropriate evidence in support of the 
information presented with respect to programme 1: Administration and programme 4: Technical Services. 

Additional matter 

11. I draw attention to the following matter below. Thi s matter does not have an impact on the predetermined objectives 
audit findings reported above. 

Achievement of planned targets 

12. Of the total number of 68 targets planned for the year, 31 were not achieved during the year under review. This 
represents 46% of total planned targets that were not achieved during the year under review. This was mainly due to 
the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process. 

OVERVIEW OF THE ENTITY'S PERFORMANCE 
Service delivery environment 

It has been three years after the amalgamation of the Free State Liquor Authority and the Free State Gambling and Racing Board 
into the merged Entity, The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority, which deals with the regulation of both the liquor and 
gambling activities in the Province. 

Top on the agenda of the new Entity was to stabilize the Entity such that service delivery could be enhanced by the pooling of 
resources to perform activities that were otherwise performed by two different Entities, this to be done at a higher level. As in 
any new environment, there will be teething problems, the Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority was no exception. 

A First Route Operator license was issued to Vukani FS (PTY) LTD and in the 2011/ 12 financial year, the Board approved 43 LPM 
site licenses. In the 2012/ 13 financial year, the Board approved 35 LPM site licenses. 

Advertisement for the second route operator was published in the Provincial Gazette and in one local newspaper ( The Weekly) 
on 11 February 2011 and closed on 06 May 2011.Request For Proposals (RFPs) invitations were sent out and five RFP documents 
were received back from interested companies having sold at a price of R10 000 each. On the closing day of the RFP invitation, 
06 May 2011 at close of business, two applications were received.Both applications were received within the 60 days of 
publication. An external service provider has been appointed to deal with issues of probity relating to these applications. 

06 May 2011 at close of business, two applications were received.Both applications were received within the 60 days of 
publication. An external service provider has been appointed to deal with issues of probity relating to these applications. 
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The position as at the end of the reporting period with regards to the second route operator licenses is that the service provider 
had concluded their probity and the results handed over to the Board. That being the position, we are slowly moving in the 
direction where we will create revenue streams from gambling activities for the Province without creating an over-proliferation 
of gambling establishment that will eventually bring more ills than good into our communities. 

At the time when t he merged Entity was formed, nobody in the Entity had a sense of the magnitude of the problems affecting 
our communities that relate to the Liquor industry. We as an Entity did not have a database for our outlets that we could say 
for sure we know how many liquor outlets were there. This did not only make our enforcement operations difficult, but made 
it also impossible for us to collect all the revenues due to the Provincial fiscus from liquor license renewals. In the 2012/ 13 
financial year, the database has been updated and we know exactly how many licensed liquor outlets there are in the Province. 

The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority also embarked on a project of amending the Free State Gambling and Liquor Act in 
order to tighten the loose ends that those who would prefer to operate outside of the perimeters of the law exploit. To this end, 
there was an initial position taken that the whole Act must be re-written because of the number of loopholes in it. Subsequent 
to this, recommendations not to rewrite the Act were presented to the MEC and this was approved on the basis that a study 
should be commissioned on the best regulatory framework for Free State. Legal Services division of FSGLA is working jointly 
with the Legal department of DETEA to finalise the Amendment Bill. 

The Authority has had a lot of challenges with regards to the processing of liquor applications, the problem being, in the 
main , difficulties encountered with reports from Designated Municipal Officers and Designated Police Officers. We have however 
managed to get all this stakeholders together in a Provincial joint working Committee where we have regular meetings to 
discuss matters of mutual interest. We are quite confident that the resolutions taken in this Committee will assist in alleviating 
problems already mentioned above. 

AN ALYSIS OF REVE NUE PER REVENUE STREAM 

HORSE RACING LEVIES 
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Horse Racing Levies 

The Authority collected R 6,983 ,855 (R 6,420,656:2012) from horse racing levies during the year under review. This constitutes 
an increase of 8. 77% from previous year. 
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CASINO LEVIES 
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Casino Levies 

Four casinos generated levies of R 29 ,943 ,228 (R 28,353,085: 2012) during the year under review which constitutes an increase 
of 5,61% from previous financial year. 

LIQU OR REVENUE 
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Liquor revenue 

Liquor revenue generated was R 5,849 ,488 (R 5,045 ,846: 2012) during the year under review whi ch constitutes an increase of 
15.93% from previous financial year. 
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LIMITED PAY OUT REVEN UE 
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LPMs' (Limited Pay-out Machine) revenue 
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LPMs' revenue collected for the year under review was R 3,193,290 (R 792,437: 2012) which constitutes an increase of 302.97% 
from previous year. LPMs started generating revenue from October 201 1. 

GAMBLING REVE NUE VS. LIQUOR REVE NUE 
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Comparing Gambling with Liquor revenue 

The gambling revenue collected is R 40,120,373 (R 35,566,178: 2012) and the liquor revenue collected is R 5,849,488 (R 
5,045,846:2012) during the year under review. The gambling revenue represent 87% (88%:2012) of revenue collected compared 
13% {12%: 2012) by liquor revenue. The gambling mandate is more profitable than liquor mandate. 
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CONSO LI DATED REVENUE 
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Consolidated Reven ue 

The total reven ue generated is R 45,969,861 (R 40,612,024: 2012) during the year under review, which constit utes an overall 
increase of 13.19% from previous financial year. 
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STRATEGIC OUTCOME ORIENTED GOALS 

• Enforce compliance with the FSGL Act and other relevant legislation 

• Good governance 

• Effective, efficient resource management and financial viabilityjsustainability 

• Contribute towards shared economic growth and social development 

• Maxi mize revenue collection from liquor trading and new gambling modes 

PERFORMANCE INFORMATION BY PROGRAMME 

PROG RAMM E 1: ADM INISTRATION 
SUB-PROGRAMME 1.1: Governance and Strategy 

Strategic Performance 

1 

2012 - 2013 ;easons Evidence 
Objective Indicator or . 

Vanance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Approved Annual Annual Annual None N/ A Available 
compliance Performance Performance Performance 
with the Plan developed Plan submitted Plan submitted 
FSGL Act and submitted to relevant to relevant 
and other according to Authorities Authorities 
relevant Legislated within prescribed within prescribed 
Legislation timelines times times 

Enforce Reports on the All legislated All legislated None N/ A Available 
compliance performance reports on reports on 
with the of the Entity Performance Performance 
FSGL Act submitted as Information of Information of 
and other per Legislated FSGLA submitted FSGLA submitted 
relevant time lines on prescribed on prescribed 
Legislation time time 

Enforce Percentage of 100% follow up All reported N/ A N/ A Available 
compliance identified non- and reporting incidences of 
with the compliances of identified non-compliances 
FSGL Act to policies, non-compliance followed up 
and other procedures, incidences 
relevant Legislation in Policies, 
Legislation followed up/ Procedures, 

reported. Legi slation, 
Principles of 
good Corporate 
Governance 
within one month 
of receipt of 
report 
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Strategic Performance 2012- 2013 Reasons Evidence 
Objective Indicator for 

Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Good Percentage 100% follow 100% follow None N/ A N/ A 
Governance follow-ups of up and up and 

Internal Auditor's implementation implementation 
recommendations of agreed upon of agreed upon 
on improvement Internal Audit Internal Audit 
in internal recommendations recommendations 
controls within within one month within agreed 
agreed time of receipt upon time 
period from date 100% period/ one 
of receipt of month . 
Internal Auditor's 
report. 

Good Percentage of implementation 100% risk None N/A N/A 
Governance risk mitigation of identified mitigation 

measures risks mitigation measures 
executed on time. measures within identified 

one week of mitigated 
identification 

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.2: Special Projects 
I 

• 1 Reasons E ·d Strateg1c Performance 1 2012 - 2013 v1 ence 
Ob . . I d" t for Ject1Ve n 1ca or v . anance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Development of Electronic Not done System Project 
compliance an electronic application handover and halted 
with the application management integration because of 
FSGL Act management system developed not done budgetary 
and other system and handed over constraints 
relevant to Technical 
legislation Services 

Enforce All files Electronic file Not done Not done Project 
Compliance electronically management halted 
with Act archived system developed because of 
6 of 2010 and handed over budgetary 
and other to Technical constraints 
Relevant Services 
Legislation 

Efficient and %of budget Expenditure Not done Not done Project 
effective variance at the within 5% of halted 
resource completion of budget allocation because of 
management each project budgetary 
and financial constraints 
viability 
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Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 Reasons Evidence 
Objective Indicator for 

Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Good Percentage 100% N/ A N/ A N/A 
Governance implementation implementation No Audit done on 

of Internal of Inte rnal the Divi sion 
Auditor's Auditor's 
recommendation recommendations 
within agreed on improvement 
time period in internal 

controls within 
1 month from 
receipt of report. 

Good Percentage of 100% Division not No ri sks Division 
Governance risk mitigation implementation operational identified as not 

measures of identified Division not operational 
executed on time. risks mitigation operational 

measures within 
one week of 
identification 

SUB-PROGRAMME 1.3 Internal Audit 

Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 :easons Evidence 

Objective Indicator i Vor. 
anance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Good Number of Internal Audit 8 Internal Audit None N/ A Available 
governance Internal Audit reports as per the reports done as 

reports as per approved plan per the approved 
Approved Internal internal Audit 
Audit plan plan 

Audit Charter Reviewed Audit Audit Charter None N/ A Available 
reviewed Charter reviewed 

Develop three Three year Three year None N/A Available 
year Internal Internal Audit Internal Audit 
Audit Rolling Rolling Plan Rolling Plan 
Plan Developed Developed 

Number of risk 4 Risk monitoring 4 Ri sk monitoring None N/A Available 
monitoring reports reports 
reports submitted 

Number of 2 Meetings with 2 meetings held None N/ A Available 
meetings with Auditor General with Aud itor 
Auditor General General 
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PROG RA MME 2: STRATEGIC FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 
SUB-PROGRAMME 2.1: Finance 

Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 ;easons Evidence 

Objective Indicator Vor . 
anance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Annual budget Annual budget Not done Annual budget Budget N/ A 
compliance submitted to submitted to submitted was 
with the Treasury & Treasury & DETEA three months not yet 
FSGL Act and DETEA within at least six months late approved 
other relevant the legislated before the start of 
legislation timeframes. the financial year. 

Enforce Annual financial Annual financial Annual financial None N/ A Available 
compliance statements statements statements 
with the submitted submitted to submitted to 
FSGL Act and to Treasury Treasury & Auditor Treasury & 
other relevant & Auditor General within Auditor General 
legislation General within two months after within two 

the legislated the end of the months after 
timeframes. financia l year. the end of the 

financial year. 

Enforce Annual report Annual report Annual report None N/ A Available 
compliance submitted submitted to submitted to 
with the to Treasury Treasury & Auditor Treasury & 
FSGL Act and & Auditor General within Auditor General 
other relevant General within five months after within five 
legislation the legislated the end of the months after 

timeframes. financial year. the end of the 
financial year. 

Contribute Percentage of 100% of payments 84% of payments -16% Cas hflow 
towards payments made made to creditors to creditors made problems, 
shared to creditors within 30 days of within 30 days of and 
economic within agreed receipt of invoice receipt of invoice disputes 
growth time period with no disputes . with 
and social supp liers 
development 

Effective, Monthly financial 12 Monthly 12 Monthly None N/ A Available 
efficient report (incl. financial reports financial reports 
resource Budget to actual submitted to submitted to 
management comparison) Treasury & DETEA Treasury & DETEA 
and financial submitted to at least 15 days at least 15 days 
viabi lity/ Treasury & after month end. after month end. 
sustai nability DETEA within 

the prescribed 
timeframes . 
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Effective, 
efficient 
resource 
management 
and financial 
viability/ 
sustainability 

Effective, 
efficient 
resource 
management 
and financial 
viability/ 
sustainability 

Good 
governance 

Good 
governance 

Good 
governance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Number of bank, Weekly bank Weekly bank None N/A 
creditors/debtors recons, One recons, One 
reconciliation creditors recon creditors recon and 
performed within and one debtors one debtors recon 
agreed time recon submitted submitted within 
period within 10 days of 10 days of each 

each month end month end 

Number of One revenue recon One revenue recon None N/ A 
revenue and and one transfer and one transfer 
transfers recon performed recon performed 
reconciliations within 10 days of within 10 days of 
to Provincial each month end. each month end. 
Treasury 
performed within 
agreed timeframe 

Improved audit Obtain an Unqualified audit None N/ A 
opinion. unqualified audit opinion obtained 

opinion 

Percentage 100% Still to receive N/ A N/ A 
Implementation implementation of internal Audit 
of Internal Internal Auditors recommendations, 
Auditor's recommendation will be 
recommendations on improvement in implemented . 
on improvement internal controls 
in interna l within 1 month 
controls within from receipt of 
agreed time report. 
period from date 
of receipt of 
Internal Auditor's 
report. 

Percentage of risk 100% 100% None N/ A 
mitigation plans implementation of implementation of 
executed on time. all risk mitigation all risk mitigation 

measures within measures with in 
1 week of 1 week of 
identification. identification 
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Available 
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Available 

N/ A 

N/ A 



SUB-PROGRAMME 2.2: Supply Chain Management 

. Reasons StrateglC Performance I 2012- 2013 f 
Objective Indicator I or. 

1 Vanance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Annual Annual Not done Annual Annual 
compliance Procurement Plan Procurement Procurement budget 
with the submitted to Plan submitted Plan not approved 
FSGL Act and Treasury within to Treasury at submitted late 
other relevant the legislated the start of the 
legislation ti mefra mes. financial year. 

Effective, Percentage 100% of Not done Procurement Procurement 
efficient finalization of procurement process could plan not 
resource procurement process within not be done approved 
management process (in prescribed time according to 
and financial line with the period. procurement 
viability/ procurement plan because 
sustainability plan) within there is no 

prescribed time procurement 
period. plan 

Contribute Percentage of 70% of 70% of None N/ A Available 
towards procurement procurement made procurement 
shared made from from SMME's, made from 
economic SMME's, women, women , youth SMME's, women, 
growth youth and people and people with youth and people 
and socia l with disabilities. disabilities. with disabilities. 
development 

Effective, Percentage of 100% recording 100% of all None N/ A Available 
efficient assets movements of all fi xed assets fi xed assets 
resource recorded in the movements in the were recorded in 
management PPE register fi xed asset register the fi xed asset 
and financial within agreed within one week register within 
viability/ time period and of the transaction one week of 
sustai nability full compliance occurring . the transaction 

to GRAP. occurring . 
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PROGRAMME 3: CORPORATE SERVICES 
Sub-programme 3.1: Human Resources 

Strategic Performance I 2012 - 2013 Reasons Evidence 
Ob. t' I d' t ' for JeC 1Ve n 1ca or 

Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Number of All approved Not all approved 4 of the 5 The 
compliance approved vacancies filled vacancies filled advertised Corporate 
with the vacancies filled within sixty days within sixty days vacancies Services 
FSGL Act of receipt of of receipt of could not be Committee 
and other requisition requisition filled within was not 
relevant 60 days. available 
legislation to decide 

on the 
positions 
in time. 

Effective, Percentage 5% reduction in 5% reduction in None N/A Available 
efficient reduction in staff staff turnover staff turnover 
resource turnover achieved 
management 
and 
financial 
viability 

Good Human Resources HR Plan updated HR Plan not HR Plan HR 
governance plan reviewed, and approved by approved reviewed but Manager 

updated and 30 June 2012 not approved responsible 
approved within for the 
agreed timeframe process 

resigned 

Good Percentage 100% 100% None N/A Available 
governance implementation implementation of implementation of 

of internal internal auditors internal auditors 
auditor's recommendations recommendations 
recommendations on improvement on improvement 
on improvement in internal in internal 
within agreed controls within controls within 
time period from 1 month from 1 month from 
date of receipt of receipt of re port receipt of report 
internal Auditor's 
report 

Percentage of risk 100% 100% None N/ A Available 
mitigation plans implementation of implementation of 
executed on time all risk mitigation all risk mitigation 

measures within measures within 
1 week of 1 week of 
identification identification 
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Sub-programme 3.2: Legal, Secretariat & Knowledge Resource Management 

Strategic Performance I! 2012 - 2013 Rea.sons for Evidence 
Objective Indicator 

1 

Vanance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Percentage 100 percent Not done The Executive The Legislature 
compliance completion completion Committee instructed that 
with the of review and of review and referred the the Department 
FSGL Act and promulgation promulgation Act for further should urgently 
other relevant of amendments of amendments consultation amend certain 
Legislation within agreed within the with other sections of the Act 

time frame financial year relevant to put the onus 
stakeholders . on the applicants 
A decision to submit all the 
was taken to relevant reports 
be repealed/ on Lodgments 
overhaul/ and to amend 
rewrite Act the timeframes in 
6 of 2010 by which to finalize 
June 2013. the application. 

Effective, Percentage 100% 100% -31% Still busy 
efficient improvement improvement improvement implementing 
resource in Litigation in litigation in Litigation processes that will 
management management management management and enable us to get to 
and financial and percentage and 50 percent 50% reduction the required figure 
viability/ reduction in reduction in in Litigation cost 
sustainability litigation cost litigation cost not achieved 

in relation 
to litigation 
incidents in a 
year 

Good Percentage 100% of Board Not done Board and Late submissions 
Governance of Board and and Committee Committee 

Committee members provided members 
members provided with notices and provided with 
with meeting other meeting notices and 
notices and documents at other meeting 
other meeting least 2 weeks documents 
documents within prior to each at Least a 
agreed timeframe meeting week before 
prior to each meetings 
meeting 
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Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 :easons Evidence 
Objective Indicator or. 

Vanance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Good Percentage 100% finali zation Not done -100% Circulation 
Governance finalization and and circulation of of Board 

circulation of minutes of Board and 
complete and & Committees Committee 
accurate minutes meeting s within 2 meeting 
of Board and weeks from date of minutes 
Committees each meeting circulated 
within agreed outside the 
timeframe after 2 weeks 
each meeting 

Good Alignment of the Approved Board Board Charter None N/ A Available 
Governance Board Charter Charter aligned approved 

with the Act with the Act 
and relevant and relevant 
corporate governance 
governance principles 
principles 

Good Percentage 100% 100% NONE N/ A Available 
Governance Implementation implementation of implementation of 

of internal internal Auditors internal auditors 
Auditor's recommendations recommendations 
recommendations on improvement in on improvement in 
on improvement internal controls internal controls 
in internal within 1 month within 1 month 
controls within from receipt of from receipt of 
agreed time report report 
period from date 
of receipt of 
internal Auditor's 
report 

Good Percentage of risk 100% 100% NONE N/ A Available 
Governance mitigation plans implementation of implementation of 

executed on time all risk mitigation all risk mitigation 
measures within measures within 
1 week of 1 week of 
identification identification 
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Sub-program me 3.3: Information Tech no logy 
I 

Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 Reasons Evidence 
Objective Indicator for 

Variance 

Annual Target Actua l performance Variance 

Enforce A system The system Not done Database Waiting for N/ A 
compliance designed in line designed in line Management Business 
with the with approved with approved System not Analyst 
FSGL Act and business business reviewed services 
other relevant processes within processes by 31 
legislation agreed timeframe December 2012 

Effective, Percentage of 100 percent of Not do ne Downtime of Email server's 
efficient network, server network, server Emai l services settings I 
Resource and application and application exceeded 48 configurations 
management down time downtime hours I error needed 
and financial restored within restored within to be reviewed 
viability/ SLA timeframes 48 ho urs by external 
sustai nability expertise 

Good Review of IT IT Strategy Not done IT Strategic Waiting Board 
governance strategic plan reviewed and Plan has been Secretariat 

within agreed app roved on or submitted to confirm 
ti meframes before March for approval date for next 

2013 but awaiti ng Finance/IT 
Board's Committee 
approval meeting 

Percentage 100% Internal Audit did N/ A N/A 
impleme ntation implementation not conduct an 
of Internal of Internal audit on IT 
Auditors Auditors 
recommendation recommendation 
on improvement on improvement 
in internal in internal 
controls within controls within 
1 month from 1 month from 
receipt of report receipt of report 

Good Percentage of risk 100% Not done IT Obsolete IT 
governance mitigation plans impleme ntation infrastructure infrastructure 

executed on time of all risk being 
mitigation upgraded 
measures within 
1 week of 
identification 
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Sub-program me 3.4: Communications and Marketing 

I 

Strategic Performance 
Objective Indicator 

Annual Target 

Enforce Number of Ten Workshops 
compliance Workshops 
with the conducted 
FSGL Act and 
other relevant 
legislation 

Effective, Number of Four collaborative 
efficient collaborative events/ MOU's 
resource events I MOU's 
management Review and 
and financial update the 
viability/ 
sustai nabi lity 

Good Review and Reviewed 
governance update the and updated 

Communication Communication 
Strategy within Strategy approved 
agreed timeframe by March 

Good Percentage 100% 
governance Implementation implementation 

of Internal of Internal 
Auditor's Auditors 
recommendations recommendations 
on improvement on improvement 
in internal in internal 
controls within controls within 
agreed time 1 month from 
period from date receipt of report. 
of receipt of 
Internal Auditor's 
report. 

Good Percentage of risk 100% 
governance mitigation plans implementation 

executed on time. of all risk 
mitigation 
measures within 
1 week of 
identification. 

2012 _ 2013 Reasons Evidence 
for 
Variance 

Actual performance Variance 

Eleven workshops +1 Participated Available 
in an extra 
workshop 
organised 
by other 
Stakeholders 

Thirteen +9 Participated Available 
collaborative in extra 
events colla bora-

tive events 
organised 
by other 
Stakeholders 

Not done Draft ready to Strategy not N/A 
be approved approved 
by the Board before end 

of financial 
year 

No audit N/ A There were 
conducted on no internal 
the Division by Auditors 
Internal Audit recom-

mendations 
received 

No risk mitigation None N/ A N/ A 
measures 
identified 
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PROGRAMME 4: TECH NICAL SERVICES 
Sub-programme 4.1 Administration and Data Processing 

Strategic Performance I 2012 - 2013 Reasons Evidence 

Ob . t" I d" for Jec lVe n tcator 
Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce % of registered 100% of 57% processed -43% Delay in 
Compliance application registered getting 
with the processed as applications Municipal 
FSGL Act per legislative processed as per and Police 
and other requirement the legislative Reports 
relevant requirements 
legislation 

Enforce % of approved 100% of all Not done 0% of licences Board 
Compliance licenses and licenses approved approved printed resolutions 
with the registration printed and and issued on were not 
FSGL Act certificates issued on the the same day received the 
and other printed and same day as as approval, \ same day. 
relevant issued within the approval Approved licenses 
legislation prescribed time printed within 5 

frame days 

Enforce Database of 100% of all 100% of received None N/ A Available 
Compliance applications applications applications 
with the received, captured on the captured within 
FSGL Act approved, refused database within one week of the 
and other and pending 1 week of the application 
relevant application 
legislation 

Maximise Number of All enabling Consultation None N/A Available 
revenue enabling policies policies for new with the MEC 
collection for new gambling gambling modes on new policies 
from liquor modes finalised finalised within facilitated 
trading within agreed the financial year 
and new timeframe and 
gambling submitted for 
modes approval 
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Sub-programme 4.2 BUSINESS REGULATIONS 

Strategic Performance ! 2012 - 2013 :easons Evidence 
Objective Indicator 1 or 

i Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce %of pre- 100% of all Liquor -38 Inspectors 
compliance licensing submitted Applications have to wait 
with the Investigations licenses to be investigated for DPO & 
FSGL Act and conducted within investigated (62 %) DMO reports 
other relevant legislated time within legislated before con-
legislation frame . time frame. ducting own 

inspections 

Enforce % of delegated 100% of all 91% of all -9% Inspectors 
compliance licenses issued qualifying qualifying have to wait 
with the within legislated applications applications for DPO & 
FSGL Act and timeframe to be licensed licensed within DMO reports 
other relevant within legislated legislated before con-
legislation timeframe timeframe ducting own 

inspections 

Enforce % of gambling 100% of all 100% inspections -20% Inspectors 
compliance inspections licensed outlets on licensed had to get 
with the conducted to be inspected outlets not requisite 
FSGL Act and achieved. training and 
other relevant dealing with 
legislation backlog on 

LPM inspec-
tions 

Enforce %of liquor 100% of liquor 3063 (66 %) of 1533 (34%) Personnel 
compliance inspections outlets to be 4596 premises premises not had to help 
with the conducted inspected inspected inspected with the 
FSGL Act and Renewal 
other relevant Project and 
legislation dealing with 

backlog 

Enforce % of reported 100% of all 100% of all NONE NONE Available 
compliance illegal illegal gambling illegal gambling 
with the gambling cases machines to be machines 
FSGL Act and investigated confiscated confiscated 
other relevant 
legislation 

Enforce % of reported 100% of all 100% of all NONE NONE Available 
compliance illegal liquor Illegal liquor known illegal 
with the outlets traders to be liquor traders 
FSGL Act and investigated closed closed down 
other relevant 
legislation 
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Strategic Performance I 2012 - 2013 :easons Evidence 
Objective Indicator ' or 

1 Variance 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Enforce Percentage of 100% of all All (100%) NONE NONE Available 
compliance complaints complaints filed complaint s 
with the FSGL and disputes to be investigate investigated . 
Act and other investigated and finali sed Fines issued and 
relevant within a within 30 days non-compliance 
legislation prescribed time notices served 

frame 

Enforce % of jackpots 100% of all 100% of Jackpots NONE NONE Available 
compliance verified within jackpots of R50 above R50 000 
with the FSGL the specific time 000 and above. verified within 7 
Act and other frame days and those 
relevant above R250 000 
legislation verified within 30 

minutes 

Sub-Programme 4.3 MONITORING AND COMPLIANCE 

Strategic Performance 
Objective Indicator 

Annual Target 

Enforce Number of 56 
compliance Revenue Audits 
with the conducted within 
FSGL Act and prescribed 
other relevant timeframes 
legislation 

Enforce Number of 40 
compliance Compliance 
with the Audits conducted 
FSGL Act and within prescribed 
other relevant timeframes 
legislation 

Enforce Number of 16 
compliance monitoring and 
with the evaluation reports 
FSGL Act and on licensee 
other relevant compliance to 
legislation special license 

conditions, in 
particular BBBEE, 
within prescribed 
timeframes 

ANNUAL R EPORT 2012 - 2013 

2012 _ 2013 Reasons Evidence 
for 
Variance 

Actual performance Variance 

66 +16 Extra Audits Available 
done to 
cover 
backlog on 
LPM audits 

38 -2 Staff 
shortages 

15 -1 Staff 
shortages 
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Strategic Performance 2012 - 2013 :easons Evidence 

Objective Indicator or 

Annual Target Actual performance Variance 

Good Percentage 100% No Internal Audit None 
Governance implementation implementation recommendations 

of Internal of agreed upon received. 
Auditor's Internal Audit 
recommendations recommendations 
on improvement within one month 
in internal of receipt 
controls within 
agreed time 
period from date 
of receipt of 
Internal Auditor's 
report. 

Good Percentage of 100% No risk mitigation None 
Governance risk mitigation implementation measures 

measures of identified identified in this 
executed on time. risks mitigation period 

measures within 
one week of 
identification 

c. GOVER NAN CE 
Committees of the Board 

OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

1 APRIL 2012 - 1 AUGUST 2012 
Ms. H.B. Mayeza (Chairperson) 1 out of 1 

Mr. W. H. Bosh off 0 out of 1 

Rev. D. Lekota 1 out of 1 

Mr. T. Mongake 1 out of 1 

2 AUGUST 2012 - 31 MARCH 2013 (appointed on 30 January 2013) 
Mr. T. Mongake (Chairperson) 

Col. L. Lane 

Ms . S. Monyaki 

FINANCE AND IT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

1 APRIL 2012 - 1 AUGUST 2012 
Ms. S. Monyaki (Chairperson) 

Mr. M. Molotsi 

Mr. L.L. Mule 

0 out of 0 

0 out of 0 

0 out of 0 

1 OF 1 

1 OF 1 

0 OF 1 

Variance 

N/ A 

N/ A 

ANNUAL REPORT REPORT BY ACC' : 

N/ A 

N/ A 



2 AUGUST 2012 - 31 MARCH 2013 (APPOINTED ON 30 JANUARY 2013) 
Ms. S. Monyaki (Chairperson) 

Mr. J. Mthembu 

Ms. G. Duda 

CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

1 APRIL 2012 - 1 AUGUST 2012 

Mr. T. Mongake (Chairperson) 

Mr. L.L. Mule 

Mr. M.T. Netshivhodza 

0 OF 0 

0 OF 0 

0 OF 0 

2 out of 2 

2 out of 2 

2 out of 2 

2 AUGUST 2012 - 31 MARCH 2013 (APPOINTED ON 30 JANUARY 2013) 
Mr. J. Mthembu (Chairperson) 

Mr. L.L . Mule 

Mr. T. Mongake 

AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

1 APRIL 2012 - 1 AUGUST 2012 
Mr. K.E. Ndleve (Chairperson)(passed on 9 May 2012) 

Ms . D. Ewertse (appointed 26 March 2012) 

(appointed Chairperson on 21 May 2012) 

Mr. R. Luvhengo (appointed 26 Ma rch 2012) 

Mr. J . Human (external member)(appointed 1 June 2012) 

Ms. S. Monyaki 

Mr. M. Molotsi 

1 AUGUST 2012 - 31 MARCH 2013 
Ms. D. Ewertse (external member)(appointed 26 March 2012) 

(appointed Chairperson on 21 May 2012) 

Mr. R. Luvhengo (external member)(appointed 26 March 2012) 

Mr. J . Human (external member)(appointed 1 June 2012) 

Ms . S. Monyaki 

Ms. G. Duda 

TERM OF OFFICE CEASED ON 1 AUGUST 2012 

Mr. M. Molotsi 

0 out of 0 

0 out of 0 

0 out of 0 

0 out of 0 

1 out of 1 

1 out of 1 

0 out of 0 

1 out of 1 

1 out of 1 

3 out of 3 

0 out of 3 

3 out of 3 

2 out of 3 

0 out of 3 

1 out of 1 
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THE ACCOUNTING AUTHO RITY/ THE BOARD 

BOARD MEETINGS 

••••• . . . -
•• 

The Board of Free State Gambling and liquor Authority is made up of non-executive members who bring in a wealth of experience 
from their different fields of expertise. 

The role of the Board is as follows: 

• It holds absolute responsibility for the performance of the Entity. 

• It retains full and effective control over the Entity. 

• It has to ensure that the Entity complies with applicable laws, regulations and government policy. 

• It has unrestricted access to information of the Entity. 

• It formulates, monitors, reviews corporate strategy, major plans of actions, risk policy and annual budgets. 

• It ensures that the Executive's mandate is achieved. 

• It manages potential conflicts of interest. 

• It develops a clear definition of levels of materiality. 

• It ensures financial statements are prepared. 

• Appraises the performance of the Chairperson. 

• Maintains integrity, responsibility and accountability. 

The composition of the Board was changed during the co urse of the financial year being reported on. The details of meetings 
held and the attendance of members is tabled below. 

1 APRIL 2012 -1 AUGUST 2012 (NEW BOARD APPOINTED SINCE 1 AUGUST 2012, BUT ONLY INFORMED 
BY MEC OF DETEA ON 6 AUGUST 2012) 

MEMBERS 

Mr. D. Pillay (Chairperson ) 

Ms. H.B. Mayeza (Deputy Chairperson) 

Mr. L.L. Mule 

Mr. M. Molotsi 

Mr. H. Boshoff 

Rev. D. Lekota 

Mr. T. Makweya 

Mr. T. Mongake 

Ms. S. Monyaki 

Mr G. Netshivhodza 

MEETINGS 

7 out of 7 

6 out of 7 

7 out of 7 

7 out of 7 

0 out of 7 

7 out of 7 

0 out of 7 

7 out of 7 

7 out of 7 

6 out of 7 

1 AUGUST 2012- 31 MARCH 2013 (ONLY INFORMED BY MEC OF DETEA ON 6 AUGUST 2012) 
MEMBERS 

Mr. D. Pillay (Chairperson ) 

Mr. L.L. Mule 

Mr. T. Mongake 

Ms. S. Monyaki 

Mr. J. Mthembu 

Col. L. Lane 

Ms. G. Duda 

ANNUAL REPORT ' • I' 
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15 out of 15 

15 out of 15 

8 out of 15 

14 out of 15 

11 out of 15 

11outof15 

3 out of 15 



BOARD OF THE FS GLA SINCE 1 AUGUST 2012 

Name Designation Date Date Qualifications Area of Board Other Other 
(i.t.o. the appointed resigned expertise directorships committees committees 
Public entity (list the or task or task 
Board entities) teams teams 
structure) 

Dhilosen Chairperson 1 August Matric Policy & Board - 16 
Pillay 2012 Boards 

Lemmy Board member 1 August Matric; Policy & Corporate Board - 16 
Mule 2012 Human Boards Services 

Resources, Sales committee 
& Marketing 
management; 
Business 
Management & 
Administration; 
Board & 
Corporate 
Govern a nee; 
Governance 
Training - USAID 
Project; 
International 
Program -
Entrepreneurship 
Development 
for SME 
Practitioners 
in SA 

Jerome Board member 1 August BProc; Legal Chairperson Board- 11 
Mthembu 2012 Advanced Corporate 

diploma in Services 
labour law committee 

Finance 
Committee 

Thabo Board member 1 August Diploma in Legal & Corporate Board - 9 
Mongake 2012 Auctioneering Policy Services 

Services; committee 
LLB Candidate Chairperson 

Operations 
Committee 

Seithati Board member 1 August B.Admin; Finance Operations Board - 15 
Monyaki 2012 Magister in Committee 

Business Chairperson 
Administration; Finance 
Certificate in Committee 
Business Studies Audit 

Committee 

Lehandra Board member 1 August B.Iuris Legal & Operations Board- 11 
Lane 2012 LLB Committee 
(Colonel) 

Gugu Board member 1 August CA(SA) Advisory Finance Board - 3 
Dud a 2012 Finance Committee 

Audit 
Committee 
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority and its Management recognize the need to conduct the business of the Board 
with integrity and in accordance with sound corporate governance practices and are therefore dedicated to the principles of 
open ness, fairness, integrity and accountability. 
Processes and practices are reviewed and revised on an ongoing basis to ensure compliance with good corporate governance. 

THE BOARD 

The former of Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority Board comprised of ten (10) non -executive members appointed in terms 
of Section 4 of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Act, 2010 (Act 6 of 2010). On 01 August 2012 the new Board consisting of 
7 non-executive members was appointed. The members are independent and appointed by virtue of their specialist knowledge 
and skills. The Chief Executive Officer and the Company Secretary are ex-officio members of the Board. 

The Board meets at least once every quarter to deal with strategic issues pertinent to the business of the Board in pursuit of 
its mandate. 

The names of Board members and attendance of meetings are as set out on page 13 above. 

EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT 

The Executive Management Committee is chaired by the Chief Executive Officer and comprises of two GM 's, the CFO and three 
Managers within the Authority, namely, Corporate Services, Technical Services, Finance, Internal Audit, Governance and Strategy, 
Special Projects. 

The Executive Management Committee is entrusted with; inter alia, the following responsibilities: 

• Ensuring that the objectives of the Authority are achieved, as planned. 

• Implementing decisions of the Authority and ensuring compliance with all legislative requirements relevant to the 
Authority. 

• Reporting to the Board and its related Committees on the performance against the set objectives; and 

• Providing the Board with the necessary advice on all relevant issues on an ongoing basi s. 

BOARD COMMITTEES 

The Board has established a number of Committees to assist in the discharge of its responsibilities and to ensure continuity 
through a spread of workload. All power and authority however remains with the Board unless delegated explicitly to any 
Committee. 

All of the Board Committees are chaired by non-executive members. Management also forms part of the Board Committees but 
have no voting rights . 

FINANCE AND IT COMMITTEE 

The Committee is responsible to oversee the IT and finances of the Board. Its functions include the review of the budget process 
and recommendation of the annual budget for approval by the Board, the review of and recommendation of the Annual Financial 
Statements for approval by the Board and to advise the Board on all matters with financial implications. 

The Committee is therefore tasked to ensure that appropriate internal controls are implemented and that the PFMA and Treasury 
Regulations are complied with. 

The Committee also develops and oversees the implementation of information technology strategy and policy. 

CORPORATE SERVICES COMMITIEE 

The Committee is responsible for the reviewing of staff policies and procedures and ensuring that they are in compliance with 
the relevant labour laws. It is furthermore the function of the Committee to monitor the appointment of staff, to review and 
control personnel costs and to make recommendations to the Board with regards to performance bonuses and annual increases. 
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OPERATIONS COMMITTEE 

This Committee is responsible for monitoring the adherence by licensees with bid commitments and license conditions. The 
Committee is further responsible for policy formulation in respect of the licensees as well as advising the Board on licenses 
applications and the amendment of licenses. In addition, the Committee oversees the promotion and implementation of 
responsible gambling strategies in the Province. 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

The Audit Committee is constituted in accordance with the requirements of the PFMA. The Chairperson is independent and non
executive and the Committee consists of a majority of independent members. A representative of the Auditor-General regularly 
attends meetings of the Audit Committee in an observer capacity. 

The Audit Committee has adopted appropriate formal Terms of Reference, which have been approved by the Board and are 
encapsulated in the Audit Committee Charter. 

RISK MANAGEMENT 

Nature of risk management 

• The Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority adopted the Enterprise risk management (ERM) approach which is a 
comprehensive method for dealing with business uncertainty; distinguishing promising risks from perilous ones. 

Risk management strategies to identify risks and manage the risks 

• The Authority established a risk management committee which together with line managers and personnel amongst 
other things, identify risks that the entity is exposed to, the probability of the risk occurring, the impact that the risk 
would have should it materialise, risk mitigating strategies and the responsible person(s) or division in dealing with 
the risk as well as time frames 

Progress made in addressing risks identified 

• The Authority developed a risk register in terms of the ERM aligned with the authority's business model and its 
subcultures. the implementation of the risk mitigating factors is monitored quarterly whilst being weary of emerging 
risks and addressing them as and when they crop up; this is an ongoing exercise. 

NOTE OF APPRECIATION 

The management of the Board wishes to express its appreciation to all parties who participated in its activities and assisted it 
in the year under review, and particularly the following: 

• The Responsible Member; 

• The Chairperson and members of the Board ; 

• The Head of Department and staff of the Department for Tourism, Environmental and Economic Affairs in the Province; 

• The Executive Council of the Free State Provincial Government; 

• All applicants for licenses and licensees; 

• The staff of the Board for their dedication and commitment; 

• The National and Provincial Gambling Boards; 

• The South African Police Services ; 

• Service providers of the Board. 

Matilda Gasela 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER 
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HUM AN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 
Personnel Cost by Programme 

Programme Total Expenditure Personal Personnel exp. No. of Average personnel 
for the entity Expenditure As a % of total employees cost per employee 
(R'OOO) (R'OOO) exp. (R'OOO) (R'OOO) 

48 251 000 32 430 281 67% 63 514 766 

Personnel cost by salary band 

Level Personnel Expenditure % of personnel exp. No. of Average personnel 
(R'OOO) to total personnel employees cost per employee 

cost (R'OOO) (R'OOO) 

Top Management 7 152 289 22% 8 894 036 

Senior Management 7 085 449 22% 10 708 545 

Professional qualified 17 785 603 55% 42 423 467 

Skilled 0 0 0 0 

Semi-skilled 0 0 0 0 

Unskilled 406 939 1% 3 135 646 

Total 32 430 281 100% 63 514 766 

Personnel cost by salary band 

Programme Performance rewards Personnel Expenditure % of performance rewards to 

Top Management 

Senior Management 

Professional qualified 

Skilled 

Semi-skilled 

Unskilled 

Total 

Training Costs 

Corporate 

Administration 

32 956 

250 823 
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Employment and vacanc1es 

Programme 2011/2012 2012/2013 2012/2013 2012/2013 %of vacancies 
No. of Employees Approved No. of Vacancies 

Posts Employees 

63 89 63 29% 

Programme 2011/2012 2012/2013 2012/2013 2012/2013 % of vacancies 
No. of Employee Approved No. of Vacancies 

Posts Employees 

Top Management 5 4 3 1 

Senior Management 10 10 8 2 

Professional qualified 52 136 46 80 

Skilled 

Semi-skilled 

Unskilled 2 2 2 0 

Total 69 152 59 83 

Reasons for staff leaving 

Reason Number % of total no. of staff leaving 

Death 

Resignation 

Dismissal 

Retirement 

Ill health 

Expiry of contract 

Other 

Total 

4 

4 

Equity Target and Employment Equity Status 

Top management 2 

Senior management 4 

Professional qualified 22 3 

Skilled 

Semi-skilled 

Unskilled 1 

TOTAL 29 3 
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FIN ANCIAL T FORM ATION 
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

GENERAL FINANCIAL REVIEW 

These financial statements have been prepared on an acc rual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand . Assets exceeded liabilities by R 1,802,185.00 
as at 31 March 2013 . 

SPENDING TRENDS 

The allocated grant for the year was R 48,251 ,000 and total expenditure and capital expenditure incurred was R 49,144,832 
and net deficit amounted to R 893,832.00. The deficit is due to non -cash items, which includes depreciation & amortisation 
and leave provision. 

CAPACITY CONSTRAINTS 

The Authority has a capacity constraint due to unfilled positions and obsolete IT infrastructure. 

DISCONTINUED ACTIVITIES / ACTIVITIES TO BE DISCONTINUED 

In the year under considerations there were no discontinued activities or activities to be discontinued. 

NEW OR PROPOSED ACTIVITIES 

For the financial year 2013/ 14 the provincial treasury has allocated the Authority R 3 million out of Revenue Enhance Allocation 
(REA) to develop database for liquor and gambling to increase revenue. 

REQUESTS FOR ROLL OVER FUNDS 

There were no requests for roll over of funds but there were commitments to the value of R 733 ,872. This committed expenditure 
relates to Internal audit function sub-contracted, service provider to assist with strategic documents, stationery container to 
address the issue of storage space and procurement of computers to replace the old computer equipment. The remaining budget 
will be used to finance the above commitments. 

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT 

Managing the supply chain is an integral part of financial management 

The four key objectives of the supply chain management are to: 

i) Transform the Authority procurement and provisioning practices into an integrated SCM function ; 
ii) Introduce a systematic approach for the appointment of consultants; 
iii) Create a common understanding and interpretation of the preferential procurement policy; and 

iv) Promote the consistent application of best practices throughout Authority's supply chain. 

An integrated supply chain management (SCM) function addresses the inefficiencies in Authority's current method of procurement, 
contract management, inventory/asset control and obsolescence planning . 
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The Authority strives to ensure that value for money is achieved and discourages fraudulent and corrupt practices to staff 
members in SCM. To mitigate the risk there is internal controls in place where Board members, management and staff members 
declare their interests. 

AUDIT REPORT MATTERS IN THE PREVIOUS YEAR 

Action plan will be drafted to address the deficiencies identified in the audit re port. 

PLANS TO ADDRESS FINANCIAL CHALLENGES 

Management will improve better financial planning and discourage unnecessary spending patterns and also requests the 
department of Economic Development, Tourism, and Environmental Affairs to fund the mandate of liquor and gambling adequately. 

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE 

There were no events after the reporting date, which were material to affect the financial statements. 

Economic Viability 

The authority is entrusted with two mandates, the first mandate is regulating liquor and second mandate is to regulate gambling. 

The first mandate is not profitable if one has to compare revenue collected and expense incurred. The regulation of liquor is 
necessary to eliminate social ills associated it and creating social awareness . 

The second mandate of regulating gambling is more profitable compared with liquor mandate and it is economically viable. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 

I would once more like to take this opportunity to give my sincere gratitude to the Board, Management and Staff of the Free 
State Gambling and liquor Authority, whom without their dedication and valuable inputs, what has been embarked upon and 
achieved by the Entity would not have been achieved . 

Ms. M Gasela 
Chief Executive Officer 
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RE PORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE FREE STATE 
LEGISLATU RE ON THE FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR 
AU THORITY 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

INTRODUCTION 

13. I have audited the financial statements of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Authority set out on pages 53 to 88, 
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2013, the statement of financial performance, 
statement of changes in net assets and the cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the notes, comprising a 
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

ACCOUNTING AUTHORITY'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

14. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and 
the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No . 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such 
internal control as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

AUDITOR-GENERAL'S RESPONSIBILITY 

15. My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit in 
accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the General Notice issued 
in terms thereof and International Standards on Auditing . Those standards require that I comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

16. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the 
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as 
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

17 . I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion . 

OPINION 

18. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Free State 
Gambling and Liquor Authority as at 31 March 2013, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the PFMA. 

EMPHASIS OF MATTERS 

19. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

IRREGULAR EXPENDITURE 

20. The full extent of the irregular expenditure of R2 539 180, as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, is still 
in the process of being investigated. 

RESTATEMENT OF CORRESPONDING FIGURES 

21. As disclosed in note 25 to the financial statements, the corresponding figures for 31 March 2012 have been restated as 
a result of errors discovered during 31 March 2013 in the financial statements of the Free State Gambling and Liquor 
Authority at, and for the year ended, 31 March 2012 . 
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REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

22. In accordance with the PAA and the General Notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant 
to performance against predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion. 

PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES 

23. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual 
performance report as set out on pages 23 to 37 of the annual report. 

24. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness 
and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in 
accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent 
with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to whether indicators and targets are 
measurable (i .e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time bound) and relevant, as required by the National 
Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information . 
The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately 
reflects the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

25 . The material findings are as follows: 

USEFULNESS OF INFORMATION 

26. The National Treasury Guide for the preparation of the annual report requires that explanations for variances between 
the planned and reported (actual) targets should be provided in all instances and should also be supported by adequate 
and reliable corroborating evidence. Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could not be provided for 66% of 
the major variances as disclosed in the annual performance report. 

27. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI) requires that performance 
targets be specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance. A total of 47% relevant to 
Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services of the targets were not specific in clearly identifying 
the nature and the required level of performance. This was due to the fact that management was aware of the 
requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application of the principles. 

28. The FMPPI requires that performance targets be measurable. The required performance could not be measured for a total of 
47% relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services of the targets. This was due to the fact 
that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application 
of the pri]nciples. 

29. The FMPPI requires that it must be possible to validate the processes and systems that produce the indicator. A total 
of 47% of the indicators relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not 
verifiable in that valid processes and systems that produce the information on actual performance did not exist. This 
was due to the fact that management was aware of therequirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary 
training to enable application of the principles. 

30. The FMPPI requires that indicators should have clear unambiguous data definitions so that data is collected consistently 
and is easy to understand and use. A total of 47% of the planned indicators according to the annual performance plan 
relevant to Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not well defined in that clear, 
unambiguous data definitions were not available to allow for data to be collected consistently. This was mainly due to 
the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process. 

31. The FMPPI requires that the time period or deadline for delivery be specified. A total of 66% of the targets relevant to 
Programme 1: Administration and Programme 4: Technical Services were not time bound in specifying a time period or 
deadline for delivery, this was mainly due to the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during 
the strategic planning process. 

RELIABILITY OF INFORMATION 

32. The FMPPI requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance 
information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, 
indicators and targets. I was unable to obtain the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy 
myself as to the reliability of information presented with respect to programme 1: Administration and programme 4: 
Technical Services. This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work due to the absence of information 
systems and due to the fact that the entity could not provide sufficient appropriate evidence in support of the 
information presented with respect to programme 1: Administration and programme 4: Technical Services . 
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ADDITIONAL MATTER 
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33. I draw attention to the following matter below. This matter does not have an impact on the predetermined objectives 
audit findings reported above. 

ACHIEVEMENT OF PLANNED TARGETS 

34. Of the total number of 68 targets planned for the year, 31 were not achieved during the year under review. This 
represents 46% of total planned targets that were not achieved during the year under review. This was mainly due to 
the fact that indicators and targets were not suitably developed during the strategic planning process. 

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS 

35. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding 
financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with 
specific matters in key applicable laws and regulations as set out in the General Notice issued in terms of the PAA are 
as follows: 

STRATEGIC PLANNING AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

36. The accounting authority did not ensure that the entity had and maintained an effective, efficient and transparent 
system of internal control regarding performance management, which described and represented how the entity's 
processes of performance planning , monitoring, measurement, review and reporting were conducted, organised and 
managed as required by section 51(1)(a)(i) of the PFMA. 

37. The executive authority of the public entity did not approve the strategic plan submitted by the accounting authority 
as required by Treasury Regulation (TR) 30.1.1. 

BUDGETS 

38. Expenditure was incurred that was not budgeted for in contravention of section 53(4) of the PFMA. 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, PERFORMANCE AND ANNUAL REPORT 

39. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in accordance with the prescribed financial 
reporting framework and/or supported by full and proper records as required by section 55(1)(a) and (b) of the PFMA. 
Material misstatements of property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, provision for leave, contingent liabilities, 
revenue, expenditure, trade and other payables, trade and other receivables and irregular expenditure identified by 
the auditors in the submitted financial statements were subsequently corrected and/or the supporting records were 
provided subsequently, resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion. 

PROCUREMENT AND CONTRACT MANAGEMENT 

40. Goods and services with a transaction value below R500 000 were procured without obtaining the required price 
quotations, as required by TR 16A6.1. 

41. Contracts were extended or modified without the approval of a properly delegated official as required by TR 8.1 
and 8.2. 

42. Quotations were awarded to suppliers whose tax matters had not been declared by the South African Revenue Services 
to be in order as required by TR 16A9 .1(d) and the Preferential Procurement Regulations. 

43. Quotations were awarded to bidders who did not submit a declaration on whether they are employed by the state or 
connected to any person employed by the state, which is prescribed in order to comply with TR 16A8.3. 

EXPENDITURE MANAGEMENT 

44. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as 
required by section 51(1)(b)(ii) of the PFMA. 

45. Effective and appropriate disciplinary steps were not taken against officials who incurred and/ or permitted irregular 
expenditure and fruitless and wasteful expenditure, as required by section 51(1)(e)(iii) of the PFMA. 

OTHER ENABLING LEGISLATION 

46 . The accounting authority did not take effective and appropriate steps to ensure that the liquor licenses are issued 
within the timeframes as set out in sections 3 - 7 of the Free State Liquor Regulations of 2010. This resulted in 
litigation against the authority which is disclosed as contingent liabilities in note 22 to the annual financial statements. 
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INTERNAL CONTROL 

47. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual performance report and compliance 
with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the 
significant deficiencies that resulted in the basis for opinion, the findings on the annual performance report and the 
findings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report. 

LEADERSHIP 

48. The entity did not continuously exercise oversight responsibility regarding financial and performance reporting and 
related internal controls due to the accounting authority not directing and reviewing the development and performance 
of the system of internal control. 

49. The implementation of action plans was not adequately monitored and implemented to address internal control 
deficiencies. Management also did not assign responsibility and accountability for control activities due to the lack 
of effective mechanisms to communicate and hold individuals accountable for performance of internal control 
responsibilities. Consequently, corrective measu res i.e. disciplinary actions were also not taken by leadership to address 
negative behaviour. 

50 . There was a slow response to the message communicated by the AGSA to the administrative and political leadership . 

FINANCIAL AND PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT 

51. The entity did not always comply with applicable laws and regulations. In most instances, there were no formal processes 
in place to monitor compliance with legislation, which resulted in the number of reported non -compliance issues. There was 
also a lack of consequences for poor performance or where laws and regulations were not complied with. 

52 . The entity did not implement proper record-keeping to ensure that complete, relevant and accurate information was 
accessible and available to support financial and performance reporting mainly due to the fact that responsible 
personnel did not perform control activities in a timely manner as defined by policies and procedures due to a lack of 
consequences . 

53 . The entity did not prepare accurate and complete financial and performance reports that were supported and evidenced 
by reliable information because the information systems did not produce information that was timely, current, accurate, 
complete, accessible, protected and verifiable, and retained. Information was also not reviewed to assess its relevance 
in supporting the internal control components. We have also identified a lack of capacity, especially in the finance and 
supply chain management units . 

GOVERNANCE 

54. Ongoing monitoring and supervision were not undertaken to enable an assessment of the effectiveness of internal 
control over financial and performance reporting due to the fact that the internal audit unit was not adequately 
resourced and functioning . 

55 . The audit committee could not adequately promote accountability and service delivery by evaluating and monitoring 
responses to risks and providing oversight of the effectiveness of the internal control environment, including financial 
and performance reporting and compliance with laws and regulations due to the ineffective functioning of the internal 
audit unit. 

OTHER REPORTS 

Investigations 

56. An investigation is being conducted by an external service provider at the request of the Department of the Premier. 
The investigation relates to licence applications and the illegal issuance of liquor licences. The investigation was still 
ongoing at the reporting date . 

57 . An investigation is being conducted by an external service provider at the request of the Free State Gambling and 
Liquor Authority. The investigation relates to applicants and their applications for the Second Route Operator in the 
Free State Province. The investigation was still ongoing at the reporting date. 

{/.[)dl {t; _,. - ¥t---t1,1;..k( 
Bloemfontein 
31 July 2013 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2013 

Figures in Rand 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Inventories 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Trade and other payables 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Reserves 
Other reserves 
Accumulated surplus 

Total Net Assets 

Note(s) 

5 
6 
7 

3 
4 

9 

8 
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2013 

18,715 
1,352,595 
9,368,228 

10,739,538 

1,521,854 
287,435 

1,809,289 

12,548,827 

10,746,642 

10,746,642 

1,802,185 

18,171 
1,784,014 

1,802,185 

. ·. ~·· 

Restated 
2012 

152,244 
184,751 

4,171 ,838 

4,508,833 

1,695,608 
528,738 

2,224,346 

6,733,179 

7,425,899 

7,425,899 

(692,720) 

18,171 
(710,891) 

(692,720) 

. .. 



FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 

Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Figures in Rand 

Revenue 
Transfer and subsidies received 
Other income 
Operating expenses 

Operating (deficit)/surplus 

Investment revenue 

(Deficit)/surplus for the year 

Attributable to: 
Owners of the controll ing entity 

ANNUA L REPORT 2012-2013 

Note(s) 2013 

10 48 ,251 ,000 
11 22 ,256 
13 (46,075,582) 

13 2,197,674 

17 297,232 

2,494,906 

2,494,906 

II F I NANCIAL INFORMATION 

Restated 
2012 

44,574,132 
12,920 

(51 ,461,271) 

(6,87 4,219) 

259,413 

(6,614,806) 

(6 ,614,806) 



FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Figures in Rand 

Balance at 01 April 2011 
Changes in net assets 
Deemed cost 

Net income (losses) recognised directly in net assets 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

Tota l recognised income and expenses for the year 

Total changes 

Opening balance as previously reported 
Adjustments 
Correction of errors 

Balance at 01 April 2012 as restated 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

Total changes 

Balance at 31 March 2013 

Note(s) 

Other reserves 

18,171 

18,171 

18,171 

18,171 

18,171 

18,171 

18,171 

8 
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Accumulated Total net 
surplus assets 

5,903,915 5,903,915 

18,171 

18,171 
(6,614,806) (6 ,614,806) 

(6,614,806) (6,596,635) 

(6,614,806) (6,596,635) 

176,626 194,797 

(887,518) (887,518) 

(710,892) (692,721) 

2,494,906 2,494,906 

2,494,906 2,494,906 

1,784,014 1,802,185 



FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Cash Flow Statement 

Figures in Rand 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Transfers and subsidies 
Investment revenue 
Other cash item 

Payments 

Compensation of employees 
Other operating expenses 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of other intangible assets 
Add back deemed cost included in PPE additions 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 

Note(s) 

19 

3 
4 

7 

2013 

48,251 ,000 
297,232 

22,216 

48,570,448 

(34,098,880) 
(8,799,283) 

(42 ,898, 163) 

5,672,285 

(468,443) 
(7,452) 

(475,895) 

5,196,390 
4,171 ,838 

9,368,228 
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Restated 
2012 

44,574 ,132 
259,413 

12,920 

44,846,465 

(36,026,902) 
(13,601 ,925) 

(49,628,827) 

(4, 782,362) 

(179,490) 
(176,491) 

18,175 

(337,806) 

(5,120,168) 
9,292,006 

4,171,838 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 

Budget on Cash Basis 

Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference 

Figures in Rand 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 
Other income - (rollup) 
Interest received -investment 

Total revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Taxation revenue 
Government grants & subsidies 

Total revenue 

Expenditure 
Personnel 
Administration 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Repairs and maintenance 
General Expenses 

Total expenditure 

Operating surplus 
Loss on disposal of assets and 
liabilities 
Asset Purchased 
Transactions in the Balance 
Sheet 

Deficit before taxation 

Actual Amount on Comparable 
Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

Reconcilation 

Basis difference 
Less non cash items 
Add: commitments 
Remaining budget 

Actual Amount in the 
Statement of Financial 
Performance 

272,148 

272,148 

48,251 ,000 

48,523,148 

(31,755,076) 
(1 ,946,301) 

(72,000) 
(14,007,623) 

(47,781,000) 

(47, 781 ,000) 

(470,000) 

(470,000) 

(48,251 ,000) 

(48,251 ,000) 

16,329 

16,329 

16,329 

(1 ,366,055) 
423,694 

46,392 
4,357,499 

3,461,530 

3,461,530 

(947,008) 
(2 ,514,522) 

(3,461 ,530) 

288,477 

288,477 

48,251,000 

48,539,477 

(33, 121 '131) 
(1 ,522,607) 

(25,608) 
(9,650, 124) 

(44,319,470) 

(44,319,470) 

(1,417,008) 
(2,514,522) 

(3,931 ,530) 

(48,251 ,000) 

(48,251 ,000) 

on comparable between fina l 
basis budget and 

22,256 
297,232 

319,488 

48,251,000 

48,570,488 

(34,098,880) 
(1 ,730,363) 

(820,989) 
(116,515) 

(9 ,238,872) 

(46,005,619) 

2,564,869 
(69,963) 

(475,895) 
(2 ,593,355) 

(3,139,213) 

(574,344) 

(574,344) 

(1 ,232,462) 
733,872 

1 '100,594 

27,660 

actual 

22,256 
8,755 

31,011 

31,011 

(977,749) 
(207,756) 
(820,989) 

(90,907) 
411,252 

(1,686,149) 

46,884,339 
(69,963) 

941,113 
(78,833) 

792,317 

47,676,656 

47,676,656 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 

Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1. Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared in terms of section 55 of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 
1999) and in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any 
interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards Board . 

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with historical cost 
convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand . 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied , are disclosed below. 

These accounting policies are consistent with the previous period . 

1.1 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired at no cost, or for a nominal cost, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows : 

Item 
Plant 
Equipment 
Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Computer equipment 

Average useful life 
5 - 14 years 
4 - 14 years 
10- 14 years 
5-9 years 
3 - 14 years 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic 
benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item . 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.2 Intangible assets 

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance. 

Costs associated with developing or maintaining computer software programs are recognized as an expense incurred. 
Costs that are directly associated with identified software product controlled by the Free State Gambling and Liquor 
Authority (the Authority) and that will generate benefits exceeding cost beyond one year, are recognized as intangible 
assets. Intangible assets are stated as historical cost less accumulated amortization and written off over a period of three 
years on the straight line method. The useful life of intangible assets is finite . It is the policy of the Authority to review 
amortization and amortization method for intangible assets at each reporting date 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will 
flow to the entity; and 
the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that 
the asset may be impaired . As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over 
its useful life. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows : 

Item 
Licenses 
Computer software 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 
on disposal; or 

Useful life 
3 - 7 years 
3- 7 years 

when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

1.3 Financial instruments 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the Authority becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

Financial instruments are carried on the statement of financial position include cash and bank balances, trade and other 
receivables and trade and other payables. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, which includes transaction costs in cases where there are transaction 
costs associated with the acquisition of a financial instrument. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are 
measured as set out below. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities in the statement of financial position are not offset unless a legal right of set-off exists, 
and the parties intend to settle on a net basis. 

Regular way purchases of financial assets are accounted for at trade date. 

Subsequent measurement 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 

Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.3 Financial instruments (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets 

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Gains and losses 

Gains and losses arising from change in the fair value of financial instruments are included in net surplus of deficit in the period 
in which they arise .. 

1.4 Tax 

Taxation 

The Authority's income is exempt from taxation in terms of Section 10 (1) (cA) (i) of the income Tax Act. 

1.5 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 

Finance leases - lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at amounts equal to the fair value 
of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is 
included in the statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the . 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the outstanding liability. The finance 
charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance 
of the liability. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between 
the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.6 Inventories 

Inventories are assets: 

(a) In the form of materials or supplies to be consumed in the production process; 

(b) in the form of materials or supplies to be consumed or distributed in the rendering of services; 

(c) held for sale or distribution in the ordinary course of operations; or 

(d) in the process of production for sale or distribution . 

Inventories are initially measured at cost except where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for nominal consideration, then 
their costs are their fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequently inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories for which the costs are not 
recoverable due to damage, whole or partial obsolescence, or decline in selling price are written down to net realisable value. 

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and current replacement cost where they are held for; 
distribution at no charge or for a nominal charge; or 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.6 Inventories (continued) 
consumption in the production process of goods to be distributed at no charge or for a nominal charge . 

. . . .. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations less the estimated costs of completion 
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange or distribution . 

Current replacement cost is the cost the entity incurs to acquire the asset on the reporting date . 

The cost of inventories comprises of all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the 
inventories to their present location and condition. 

The cost of inventories of items that are not ordinarily interchangeable and goods or services produced and segregated for 
specific projects is assigned using specific identification of the individual costs . 

The cost of inventories is assigned using the first-in , first-out (FIFO) formula . The same cost formula is used for all inventories 
having a similar nature and use to the entity. 

When inventories are sold, the carrying amounts of those inventories are recognised as an expense in the period in which the 
related revenue is recognised. If there is no related revenue, the expenses are recognised when the goods are distributed , or 
related services are rendered . The amount of any write-down of inventories to net realisable value or current replacement cost 
and all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any 
reversal of any write-down of inventories, arising from an increase in net realisable value or current replacement cost, are 
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal occurs. 

1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return . When 
an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition 
of the loss of the asset's future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction between 
knowledgeable , willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset's fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the entity; or 
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the entity. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired . 

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be impaired . 
If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset. 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.7 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Value in use 

Value in use of an asset is the present value of the asset's remaining service potential. 

The present value of the remaining service potential of an asset is determined using the following approach: 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset's revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), 
on a systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

1.8 Employee benefits 

Short-term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the 
service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase 
their entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the entity's obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan . 

1.9 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
the entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 
a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation . 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date . 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is 
no longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation . 

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity. 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events, and whose existence will be confirmed only by the 
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the entity; or a present 
obligation that arises from past events but is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying 
economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the obligation; or the amount of the obligation cannot be 
measured with sufficient reliability. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised . Contingencies are disclosed in note 21 . 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1.10 Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

An exchange transaction is one in which the municipality receives assets or services, or has liabilities extinguished , and directly 
gives approximately equal value (primarily in the form of goods, services or use of assets) to the other party in exchange. 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled , between knowledgeable, willing parties in 
an arm's length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable , net of trade discounts and volume rebates . 

Rendering of services 

When the outcome of a transaction involving the rendering of services can be estimated reliably, revenue associated with 
the transaction is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date. The outcome 
of a transaction can be estimated reliably when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

the amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 
it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity; 
the stage of completion of the transaction at the reporting date can be measured reliably; and 
the costs incurred for the transaction and the costs to complete the transaction can be measured reliably . 

When the outcome of the transaction involving the rendering of services cannot be estimated reliably, revenue is recognised 
only to the extent of the expenses recognised that are recoverable . 

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest is recognised when : 
It is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity, 
and 
The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised , in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.11 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Authority. 
Probability test is satisfied once revenue is appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act of the relevant financial year. 

Revenue comprises budget allocations for the activities of the Authority provided for in the budget of Department of Economic 
Development, Tourism and Environmental Affairs (DETEA) as transfer payments and other non-operating income. 

Budget allocations are recognized as revenue when it is probable that such funds will accrue to the Authority. 

Interest income is accrued on a time proportion basis, taking into account the capital outstanding and the effective interest 
rate over the period to maturity. 

Interest accrued on investmenUcall accounts of the government grants is returned to the Executive Authority of finalization of 
the financial statements in terms of the transfer agreement between the Board and the Executive Authority. 

Recognition 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset is recognised as revenue, except to the extent 
that a liability is also recognised in respect of the same inflow. 

As the entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange 
transaction recognised as an asset, it reduces the carrying amount of the liability recognised and recognises an amount of 
revenue equal to that reduction . 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Accounting Poli cies 

1.11 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Measurement 

Revenue from a non-exchange transaction is measured at the amount of the increase in net assets recognised by the entity. 

1.12 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.13 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote ; and 
expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division , not in accordance with 
the purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in 
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 
where recovered , it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.14 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

In terms of section 55(2) (b) (i) of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 the financial statements must include particulars 
of any irregular and fruitless and wasteful expenditure. 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or in accordance with , a requirement of any applicable 
legislation, including . 

- The PFMA, or 
- Any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in the Provincial Government. 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred . The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered , it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.15 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the PFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation , including -

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

Irregular expenditure is treated in terms of National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of 
sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA (effective from 1 April 2008) as follows: 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end 
and/or before finalisation of the financial statements is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an 
instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end is recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of updating 
the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements is updated with the amount condoned. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.15 Irregular expenditure (continued) 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority is recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person , a debt account is created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate steps 
are thereafter taken to recover the amount from the person concerned . If recovery is not possible, the accounting officer or 
accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial 
statements. The irregular expenditure register is updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been condoned and 
no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto remains against the relevant programme/expenditure item, is 
disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

1.16 Budget information 

Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is 
given effect through authorising legislation , appropriation or similar. 

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the budgeted 
amounts for the reporting period have been included in the financial statements. 

The Statement of comparative and actual information have been included in the financial statements as the recommended 
disclosure when the financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting as determined by National 
Treasury. 

1.17 Events after the reporting date 

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the reporting date 
and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. Such events are of two types: 

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events after the 
reporting date); and 

(b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events after the 
reporting date). 

Management continuously reviews events after the financial position date which might have an adjusting or non-adjusting 
effect on the financial statements. Events after the financial position disclosed in the financial statements where applicable. 

Amounts recognised in the financial statements are, where applicable, adjusted to reflect adjusting events after the 
reporting date. Non adjusting events are not adjusted for. 

No events after the reporting date were identified that are relevant to the year in review. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 2013 

2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current Year 

In the current year, the entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the current 
financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 

GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

2012 

Revenue from non-exchange transactions arises when an entity receives value from another entity without directly giving 
approximately equal value in exchange. An asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction shall initially be measured 
at its fair value as at the date of acquisition . 

This revenue will be measured at the amount of increase in net assets recognised by the entity. 

An inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset shall be recognised as revenue, except to 
the extent that a liability is recognised for the same inflow. As an entity satisfies a present obligation recognised as a liability 
in respect of an inflow of resources from a non-exchange transaction recognised as an asset, it will reduce the carrying 
amount of the liability recognised as recognise an amount equal to that reduction. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012 . 

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2013 financial statements with no material impact. 

GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the Financial Statements 

Subject to the requirements of paragraph .19, an entity shall present a comparison of the budget amounts for which it is 
held publicly accountable and actual amounts either as a separate additional financial statement or as additional budget 
columns in the financial statements currently presented in accordance with Standards of GRAP. The comparison of budget 
and actual amounts shall present separately for each level of legislative oversight: 

the approved and final budget amounts; 
the actual amounts on a comparable basis; and 
by way of note disclosure, an explanation of material differences between the budget for which the entity is held 
publicly accountable and actual amounts, unless such explanation is included in other public documents issued 
in conjunction with the financial statements, and a cross reference to those documents is made in the notes. 

Where an entity prepares its budget and financial statements on a comparable basis, it includes the comparison as an 
additional column in the primary financial statements. Where the budget and financial statements are not prepared on a 
comparable basis, a separate statement is prepared called the 'Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts' . 
This statement compares the budget amounts with the amounts in the financial statements adjusted to be comparable to 
the budget. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012. 

The entity has adopted the standard in the 2013 financial statements . 

The adoption of this standard has not had a material impact on the results of the entity, but has resulted in more disclosure 
than would have previously been provided in the financial statements. 

GRAP 21: Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, it is impaired. 

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash-generating asset may be 
impaired . If any such indication exists, an entity estimates the recoverable service amount of the asset. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012. 

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2013 financial statements with no material impact. 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

The impact of the standard is not material. 

GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by an entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial return. 
When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial 
return . 

When the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable amount, it is impaired. 

An entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be impaired. If 
any such indication exists, an entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. When estimating the value in use of an 
asset, an entity estimates the future cash inflows and outflows to be derived from continuing use of the asset and from its 
ultimate disposal and an entity applies the appropriate discount rate to those future cash flows . 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012. 

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2013 financial statements. 

The impact of the standard is not material. 

GRAP 104: Financial Instruments 

The standard prescribes recognition , measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements for financial instruments. 
Financial instruments are defined as those contracts that results in a financial asset in one entity and a financial liability or 
residual interest in another entity. A key distinguishing factor between financial assets and financial liabilities and other 
assets and liabilities, is that they are settled in cash or by exchanging financial instruments rather than through the provision 
of goods or services. 

GRAP 104 requires extensive disclosures on the significance of financial instruments for an entity's statement of financial 
position and statement of financial performance, as well as the nature and extent of the risks that an entity is exposed to as 
a result of its financial statements. Some disclosures, for example the disclosure of fair values for instruments measured at 
amortised cost or cost and the preparation of a sensitivity analysis, are encouraged rather than required . 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2012. 

The entity has adopted the standard for the first time in the 2013 financial statements. 

The adoption of this amendment has not had a material impact on the results of the entity, but has resulted in more 
disclosure than would have previously been provided in the financial statements. 

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

GRAP 25: Employee benefits 

GRAP25 must be applied by an employer in accounting for all employee benefits, except share based payment 
transactions. 

The effective date of the standard is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2013. 

The entity expects to adopt the standard for the first time in the 2014 financial statements. 

The adoption of this standard is not expected to impact on the results of the entity, but may result in more disclosure than is 
currently provided in the financial statements. 
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Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

IGRAP 7: The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction 

This Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP applies to all post-employment defined benefits and other long-term employee 
defined benefits . 

For the purpose of this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP, minimum funding requ irements are any requirements to 
fund a post-employment or other long-term defined benefit plan. 

The issues addressed in this Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP are: 
When refunds or reductions in future contributions should be regarded as available in accordance with 
paragraph .68 of the Standard of GRAP on Employee Benefits. 
How a minimum funding requirement might affect the availability of reductions in future contributions 

The Interpretation of the Standards of GRAP addresses accounting by the entity that grants award credits to its customers. 

The effective date of the interpretation is for years beginning on or after 01 April 2013. 

The entity expects to adopt the interpretation for the first time in the 2013 financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under common control 

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer and transferor in a transfer of functions 
between entities under common control. It requires an acquirer and a transferor that prepares and presents financial 
statements under the accrual basis of accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or event that meets the definition 
of a transfer of functions . It includes a diagram and requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether this 
Standard should be applied in accounting for a transaction or event that involves a transfer of functions or merger. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying the acquirer and transferor, Determining the transfer date, Assets acquired or 
transferred and liabilities assumed or relinquished , Accounting by the acquirer and transferor, Disclosure, Transitional 
provisions as well as the Effective date of the standard. 

The standard currently has no effective date. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not under common control 

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities 
not under common control. It requires an entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of 
accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets the definition of a transfer of functions . It 
includes a diagram and requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether this Standard should be applied 
in accounting for a transaction or event that involves a transfer of functions or merger. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a transfer of functions between entities not under common control, The 
acquisition method, Recognising and measuring the difference between the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the 
consideration transferred , Measurement period , Determining what is part of a transfer of functions, Subsequent 
measurement and accounting, Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the Effective date of the standard . 

The standard currently has no effective date. 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

GRAP 107: Mergers 

The objective of this Standard is to establish accounting principles for the acquirer in a transfer of functions between entities 
not under common control. It requires an entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of 
accounting to apply this Standard to a transaction or other event that meets the definition of a transfer of functions . It 
includes a diagram and requires that entities consider the diagram in determining whether this Standard should be applied 
in accounting for a transaction or event that involves a transfer of functions or merger. 

It furthermore covers Definitions, Identifying a transfer of functions between entities not under common control , The 
acquisition method, Recognising and measuring the difference between the assets acquired and liabilities assumed and the 
consideration transferred, Measurement period , Determining what is part of a transfer of functions, Subsequent 
measurement and accounting, Disclosure, Transitional provisions as well as the Effective date of the standard . 

The standard currently has no effective date . 

It is unlikely that the amendment will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 

GRAP 20: Related parties 

The objective of this standard is to ensure that a reporting entity's financial statements contain the disclosures necessary to 
draw attention to the possibility that its financial position and surplus or deficit may have been affected by the existence of 
related parties and by transactions and outstanding balances with such parties. 

An entity that prepares and presents financial statements under the accrual basis of accounting (in this standard referred to 
as the reporting entity) shall apply this standard in: 

identifying related party relationships and transactions; 
identifying outstanding balances, including commitments, between an entity and its related parties; 
identifying the circumstances in which disclosure of the items in (a) and (b) is required; and 
determining the disclosures to be made about those items. 

This standard requires disclosure of related party relationships , transactions and outstanding balances, including 
commitments, in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the reporting entity in accordance with the Standard 
of GRAP on Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. This standard also applies to individual financial statements. 

Disclosure of related party transactions, outstanding balances, including commitments, and relationships with related 
parties may affect users' assessments of the financial position and performance of the reporting entity and its ability to 
deliver agreed services, including assessments of the risks and opportunities facing the entity. This disclosure also ensures 
that the reporting entity is transparent about its dealings with related parties. 

The standard states that a related party is a person or an entity with the ability to control or jointly control the other party, or 
exercise significant influence over the other party, or vice versa, or an entity that is subject to common control , or joint 
control. As a minimum, the following are regarded as related parties of the reporting entity: 

A person or a close member of that person's family is related to the reporting entity if that person: 
has control or joint control over the reporting entity; 
has significant influence over the reporting entity; 
is a member of the management of the entity or its controlling entity. 

An entity is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions apply: 
the entity is a member of the same economic entity (which means that each controlling entity, controlled 

entity and fellow controlled entity is related to the others); 
one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of 

an economic entity of which the other entity is a member); 
both entities are joint ventures of the same third party; 
one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third entity; 
the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the entity or an entity 

related to the entity. If the reporting entity is itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are related to the entity; 
the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (a); and 
a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over that entity or is a member of the management of 

that entity (or its controlling entity) . 
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FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

The standard furthermore states that related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the 
reporting entity and a related party, regard less of whether a price is charged . 

The standard elaborates on the definitions and identification of: 
Close member of the family of a person; 
Management; 
Related parties; 
Remuneration; and 
Significant influence 

The standard sets out the requirements , inter alia , for the disclosure of: 
Control ; 
Related party transactions; and 
Remuneration of management 

The standard currently has no effective date. 

It is unlikely that the standard will have a material impact on the entity's financial statements. 
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Figures in Rand 

3. Property, plant and equipment 

2013 

Cost I Accumulated Carrying value Cost I 
Valuation depreciation Valuation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

Furniture and fixtures 959,638 (616,967) 342,671 931 ,688 
Motor vehicles 738,362 (285,733) 452,629 739,327 
Office equipment 292 ,027 (228,604) 63,423 320 ,590 
Computer equipment 1,949,767 (1 ,287,325) 662,442 1,642,635 
Security equipment 4,141 (3,452) 689 4,141 

Total 3,943,935 (2,422,081) 1,521,854 3,638,381 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment · 2013 

Opening Additions Disposals Depreciation 
balance 

Furniture and fixtures 339,275 86,034 (58,084) (66,330) 
Motor vehicles 512 ,308 (965) (59,518) 
Office equipment 112,234 (28,563) (32,357) 
Computer equipment 730,872 382,409 (75,277) (413,798) 
Security equipment 919 (230) 

1,695,608 468,443 (162,889) (572,233) 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment· 2012 

Opening Additions Assessment Depreciation 
balance of useful lives 

Furniture and fixtures 415,818 13,563 37 (79,272) 
Motor vehicles 577,957 (65,649) 
Plant and equipment 107,080 27,110 22,705 (44,660) 
Computer equipment 1,015,172 138,817 43,405 (466,480) 
Library books 3,768 (3 ,066) 
Security equipment 1,386 (461) 

2,121,181 179,490 66,147 (659,588) 

Deemed cost 

Aggregate of items valued using deemed cost 
Aggregate adjustment to the carrying amounts previously reported 

Deemed cost was determined using fair value OR depreciated replacement cost. 

ANNUAL REPORT FINANCIAL !',' 

2013 2012 

2012 

Accumulated Carrying value 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 
impairment 

(592,413) 
(227,019) 
(208,356) 
(911 ,763) 

(3,222) 

(1 ,942, 773) 

Disposal of 
Accumulated 
depreciation 

41,776 
804 

12,109 
38,236 

92,925 

Impairment 
loss 

(1 0,871) 

(1) 
(42) 

(702) 
(6) 

(11 ,622) 

339,275 
512,308 
112,234 
730,872 

919 

1,695,608 

Total 

342,671 
452,629 

63,423 
662,442 

689 

1,521,854 

Total 

339,275 
512,308 
112,234 
730,872 

919 

1,695,608 

17 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 

4. Intangible assets 

2013 2012 

Cost I Accumulated Carrying value Cost I Accumulated Carrying value 
Valuation amortisation Valuation amortisation 

and and 
accumulated accumulated 
impairment impairment 

Computer software, other 1,065,309 (777,874) 287,435 1,057,856 (529,118) 

Reconciliation of intangible assets- 2013 

Opening Additions Amortisation 
balance 

Computer software, other 528,738 7,452 (248,755) 

Reconciliation of intangible assets- 2012 

Opening Additions Amortisation 
balance 

Computer software, other 612,388 176,491 (260,141) 

5. Inventories 

Stationery, promotional items and cartridges 18,715 

Inventories recognised as an expense during the year (printing and stationery) 223,903 

6. Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade debtors 
Deposits 
Staff loans 
Donation paid on behalf of DETEA 

Credit quality of trade and other receivables 

1,098,104 
50,500 

153,991 
50,000 

1,352,595 

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. 
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528,738 

Total 

287,435 

Total 

528,738 

152,244 

192,729 

92,008 
92,743 

184,751 
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Figures in Rand 2013 2012 

6. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Trade and other receivables impaired 

As at 31 March 2013, trade and other receivables was not impaired and (2011/12: R81 598) were impaired and provided for. 

The amount of provision was R1 360 868 as at 31 March 2013 (2012: R1 360 868) 

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or 
deficit. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of 
recovering additional cash: 

The maximum exposure to cred it risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The 
entity does not hold any collatera l as security. 

The ageing of these loans is as follows : 

3 to 6 months 
Over 6 months 

7. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity are ful ly available for use by the entity 

8. Other reserves 

Opening balance 

9. Trade and other payables 

Trade creditors 
License fees received in advance 
Garnish orders 
Provision for leave 
Interest received on Grant to be refunded to DETEA 
Receiver of Revenue- PAYE 
Funds to be surrendered to DETEA 
Salary control account 
UIF control account 
Pension fund control account 
Medical aid control account 
Union fees control account 
Forfeited cash control account - to be surrendered to DETEA 
Salary backpay - CEO 

ANNUAL REPORT • 71 

1,360,868 

3,000 
9,365,228 

9,368,228 

18,171 

1,044,391 
1,381,325 

5,575 
3,032,042 

297,005 
792,702 

3,192,717 
521,244 

18,942 
380,659 

57,304 
2,240 

20,496 

10,746,642 

1,360,868 

2,573 
4 ,169,265 

4,171,838 

18,171 

1,391 ,831 
1,364,825 

8,246 
2,203,363 

271 ,189 
1,290,467 

30,783 
33,046 
17,907 

522 
54,955 

15,582 
743,183 

7,425,899 
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Figures in Rand 2013 2012 

6. Receivables from exchange transactions (continued) 

Trade and other receivables impaired 

As at 31 March 2013, trade and other receivables was not impaired and (2011/12: R81 598) were impaired and provided for. 

The amount of provision was R1 360 868 as at 31 March 2013 (2012: R1 360 868) 

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or 
deficit. Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of 
recovering additional cash : 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the fair value of each class of loan mentioned above. The 
entity does not hold any collateral as security. 

The ageing of these loans is as follows : 

3 to 6 months 
Over 6 months 

7. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 
Bank balances 

1,360,868 

3,000 
9,365,228 

9,368,228 

Cash and cash equivalents held by the entity are fully available for use by the entity 

8. Other reserves 

Opening balance 

9. Trade and other payables 

Trade creditors 
License fees received in advance 
Garnish orders 
Provision for leave 
Interest received on Grant to be refunded to DETEA 
Receiver of Revenue- PAYE 
Funds to be surrendered to DETEA 
Salary control account 
UIF control account 
Pension fund control account 
Medical aid control account 
Union fees control account 
Forfeited cash control account - to be surrendered to DETEA 
Salary backpay - CEO 
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18,171 

1,044,391 
1,381 ,325 

5,575 
3,032,042 

297,005 
792,702 

3,192,717 
521 ,244 

18,942 
380,659 

57,304 
2,240 

20,496 

10,746,642 
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1,360,868 

2,573 
4,169,265 

4,171 ,838 

18,171 

1,391 ,831 
1,364,825 

8,246 
2,203,363 

271 '189 
1,290,467 

30,783 
33,046 
17,907 

522 
54,955 

15,582 
743,183 

7,425,899 
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10. Revenue 

Other income 
Interest received - investment 
Government grants & subsidies 

The amount included in revenue arising from exchanges of goods or services 
are as follows: 
Other income 
Interest received - investment 

The amount included in revenue arising from non-exchange transactions is as 
follows: 

Transfer revenue 
Government grants & subsidies (Free State Department of Economic Development, 
Tourism & Environmental Affairs (DETEA)) 

11. Other income 

Sundry income 
Discount received 
Management fees 

12. General expenses 

Advertising 
Auditors remuneration 
Cleaning 
Computer expenses 
Consulting and professional fees 
Entertainment 
Conference fee 
Lease rentals on operating lease 
Postage and courier 
Printing and stationery 
Security services 
Staff welfare 
Training and development 
Travel - local 
Municipal services 
Health and safety 
Publications 
Revenue to be surrendered to DETEA 
Public hearings 
Relocation costs 
Road Shows 
Penalty & Interest 

13. Operating (deficit)/surplus 

A N U A L R E P 0 R T , , F I N A N C I A L ' "I r ' ' 

2013 

22 ,256 
297,232 

48,251 ,000 

48,570,488 

22,256 
297,232 

319,488 

48,251 ,000 

40 
10,216 
12,000 

22,256 

496,090 
1,926,158 

570 
176,703 

1,849,510 
141 ,308 
35,375 

1,015,319 
5,768 

198,996 
261 ,772 
43,053 
74,090 

2,175,880 
237,750 

1,283 
42,873 

297,005 
74,120 

124,049 
61 ,200 

9,238,872 

2012 

12,920 
259,413 

44,574,132 

44,846,465 

12,920 
259,41 3 

272,333 

44,574,132 

920 

12,000 

12,920 

276,101 
5,025,893 

233 
115,387 

2,643,303 
170,980 

16,000 
1 '1 00,830 

23,820 
192,729 
223,082 

22 ,346 
296 ,675 

1,935,435 
219,064 

1,375 
68,189 

271 ,189 
38 ,617 

7,122 

12,648,370 
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13. Operating (deficit)/surplus (continued) 

Operating (deficit)/surplus for the year is stated after accounting for the following : 

Operating lease charges 
Premises 

Contractual amounts 

(Loss) I gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 
Employee costs 

2013 

1,015,319 

(69,963) 
820,989 

34,098,880 

2012 

1,100,830 

(11 ,622) 
853,581 

36,026,902 

The Authority lease warehouse on a month to month contract. The office space month to month contract ended on the 30th 
November 2012. The Head office is on a 3 year lease term and its three region have a lease agreement ranging from 2 years 
to three lease term. 

14. Employee related costs 

Basic salary 
Medical aid contributions 
Unemployment Insurance Fund 
Workmen's Compensation 
Leave pay provision charge 
Pension fund contributions 
13th Cheque 
Board fees 

15. Administrative expenditure 

Administrative expenses 

Administrative expenditure - details 
Bank charges 
Internet fees 
Telecommunication - office 
Telecommunication-cell 
Stationery 
Insurance 
Postage 
Licence - motor vehicles 
Subscriptions 
Membership fee 

16. Debt impairment 

Debt impairment 

17. Interest received-Investment 

Interest revenue 
Bank 
Interest received - staff loans 

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 - 2013 

26,276,751 
763,502 
101 ,974 

1 '179,572 
2,876,767 
2,114,014 

786,300 

34,098,880 

1,730,363 

104,030 
204,462 
204,092 
739,806 
223,903 
200,091 

342 
2,585 

51 ,052 

1,730,363 
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297,005 
227 

297,232 

28,140,166 
552,533 
106,025 
111 '160 

1,214,844 
2,899,701 
2,266,343 

736,130 

36,026,902 

1,700,086 

79,697 
211,384 

97,316 
822,701 
180,900 
195,128 

984 
98,457 
13,519 

1,700,086 

81 ,598 

259,189 
224 

259,413 
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18. Auditors' remuneration 

Auditor general fees 
Forensic audit fees 
Internal audit fees 

19. Cash (used in) I generated from operations 

(Deficit) I surplus 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Loss I (Gain) on sale of assets 
Changes in working capital: 
Inventories 
Receivables from exchange transactions 
Trade and other payables 

20. Commitments 

Authorised capital expenditure 

Already contracted for but not provided for 
Property, plant and equipment 
Internal audit 
Strategic session 
Stationery container 
Other commitmets 

2013 

1,220,624 
379,600 
325,934 

1,926,158 

2,494,906 

820,989 
69,963 

133,528 
(1 ,167,844) 
3,320,743 

5,672,285 

364,609 
76,463 

167,215 
73,650 
51 ,935 

733,872 

. · ..... 

2012 

2,038,161 
2,712,256 

275,476 

5,025,893 

(6 ,614,806) 

853,581 
11,622 

(13,872) 
262,931 
718,182 

(4,782,362) 

This committed expenditure relates to Internal audit function sub-contracted, service provider to assist with strategic 
documents, stationery container to address the issue of storage space and procurement of computers to replace the old 
computer equipment. The remaining budget will be used to finance the above commitments. 
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21. Contingencies 

LITIGATIONS FOR AND AGAINST THE AUTHORITY 

The State Attorney was instructed to pursue civil action against Mr Saliwe of Zion Consulting for the recovery of the Board 's 
damages and, in addition, to assist the Board in instituting criminal charges against Mr. Saliwe for defrauding the Board . 
The matter was delayed as Mr. Saliwe could not be located , and a tracing agent had to be appointed by the State Attorney 
to find Mr. Saliwe. Further feedback on the matter is at present awaited from the State Attorney. The total estimated 
financial exposure to the Authority is R 17 000 

In its judgment in the review application , delivered on the 18th of March 2010, the Free State High Court declared the 
licenses issued to both Interplay Gaming FS and Thuo Gaming FS invalid and null and void , and ordered the Board to issue 
a Route Operator License to Vukani FS. An urgent application was lodged by Vukani FS against the Authority on the 18th of 
October 2010, for an order directing the Authority to invite applications for limited gambling machine site licenses by 
publishing an invitation in the next Provincial Gazette and two newspapers circulating in the Province. The Board opposed 
the application. After hearing the application , the Court rejected the Authority's arguments in opposition of the application 
and found in favour of Vukani . Application for leave to appeal was lodged; but the matter has subsequently been settled 
outside of court, after an agreement was reached between Vukani and the Board. The total estimated financial exposure to 
the Authority is R2 000 000. 

All cases listed below relate to the following : 

Applications to compel the FSGLA to take decision on liquor license application, application for transfer and application for 
the appointment of a manager; 

Application for review of decision to approve a liquor license; and Search and seizure mat 

Management Description 
Vukani Gaming as indicated above 
Hans Seuntjie Matoto Ua Matoto Eating House 
Total of 48 various cases with an estimated cost of R17 000 each 
Total of 46 various cases with an estimated cost of R 17 017 each 
Former FSLA Inspectors (no costs order against the Authority) 

Other Contingent Assets and Liabilities 

2,000,000 2,000,000 
25,000 

816,000 
782,780 

2,782,780 2,841,000 

During the financial year, a reconciliation was performed between the actual rental expense invoiced and the rental 
expense that should have been invoiced as per the rental agreement (from 1 April 2004 to 31 March 2012). The 
reconciliation results indicated a difference which was as a result of rental expense being undercharged during the rental 
period. Discussions are currently taking place between the Landlord and the Authority to write-off the difference. The 
Landlord has verbally indicated that a write will take place, but they are just considering other issues. As at the year end, 
the matter was still not finalised and accordingly a contingent liability has been disclosed as follows: 

Contingent liability 
The GNG family Trust 

Contingent assets 
Recovery of lost assets (laptops) 
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21. Contingencies (continued) 

In the year under review some laptops got lost in the care of employees. The Authority submitted one claim to the insurance 
company and the insurance company instituted investigation on how the laptop got lost. The insurance declined the claim 
because there was no forced entry when the laptop got stolen . The Authority informed affected employee about the outcome of 
the investigation . The Authority will recover the book value amounts of the lost laptops from affected employees. The Finance 
Management Act 1 Of 1999, Section 57 Responsibility of other officials , par. (e) indicate that official is responsible for the 
management, including safe guarding, of the assets and the management of the liabilities within that official's area of 
responsibility. Section 51 General responsibility of accounting authorities par b(ii) prevent irregular expenditure, fruitless and 
wasteful expenditure, losses resulting from criminal conduct, and expenditure not complying with the operational policies of the 
public entity 

Section 51 General responsibility of accounting authorities par b(ii) prevent irregular expenditure, fruitless and wasteful 
expend iture, losses resulting from criminal conduct, and expenditure not complying with the operational policies of the public 
entity 

22. Related parties 

Name of related party 
Board Members, Audit Committee and Management Refer to note on Board Members, Audit Committee 

and Management remuneration, note 23 
Controlling entity Free State Department of Economic Development, 

Tourism & Environmental Affairs (DETEA) 

Related party balances 

Amounts included in Trade Payables regarding related parties 
Free State Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental Affairs 

Amounts included in Trade Receivables regarding related parties 
DETEA Grant receivable 
DETEA Provision for bad debt 

Net Trade Receivable 

Related party transactions 

Funds collected in terms of the Free State Gambling and Liquor Act, Act no 
6.of 2010 
Horse racing levies and tax revenues 
Casino levies and tax revenues 
Limited Payout Machines 
- Self-collected - FSGLA 
- Collected by DETEA 
- Collected by SARS 

Total funds collected and paid over to DETEA 

Transfer and subsidies (received) 
Free State Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental 
Affairs(DETEA) 

A N N U A l R E P 0 R T l F I N A N C I A l I 'J ' ' ' 

(4,891 ,543) 

1,372,805 
(1 ,322,805) 

50,000 

6,983,855 
29,943,228 

3,193,290 
5,849,488 

45,969,861 

(48,251 ,000) 

(1 ,682,379) 

1,322,805 
(1 ,322,805) 

6,420,656 
28,353,085 

792,437 
5,040,999 

4 ,247 
600 

40,612,024 

(44,574,132) 
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)> 

23. Board Members', Audit Committee Members' emoluments and Management Compensation 
c:: 
)> 

Executive 

2013 
u 

0 

-
Salaries Car 13th Cheque Medical Pension Total Other Grand total 

allowances Contribution Contribution allowances 
M Gasela 1,774,323 18,000 101,901 155,859 2,050,083 23,400 2,073,483 
B Molotsi : CEO Former FSLA 486,698 57,549 544,247 544,247 
ME Ratsomo: GM: Corporate 804,203 72,000 72,817 99,209 1,048,229 14,400 1,062,629 
E Mackay: GM: Technical Services 653,637 72,000 66,890 79,247 91,134 962,908 14,400 977,308 
T Motloi CA (SA): Former CFO (Until 30/09/2012) 350,678 12,000 30,058 39,963 432,699 7,200 439,899 

• D Skosana: Acting CFO (From 01/10/2012) 376,760 37,096 25,881 439,737 7,200 446,937 
M Mahao: Manager Governance and Strategy 660,152 36,000 58,423 78,790 833,365 14,400 847,765 
M Mofokeng Internal Audit Manager 593,637 72,000 58,423 37,374 79,587 841,021 14,400 855,421 
Other Managers 5,551 ,209 340,000 467,419 103,216 623,605 7,085,449 116,400 7,201 ,849 

11,251,297 622,000 893,027 219,837 1,251,577 14,237,738 211,800 14,449,538 
)> 

:z 
n 
~ 2012 
)> 

r 

Salaries Car 13th cheque Medical Pension Total Other Grand total 
allowances contribution contribution allowances 

B Molotsi: CEO Former FSLA 817,788 70,364 94,349 982,501 982,501 
3: M Gasela: CEO 1,907,198 141,089 135,981 2,184,268 28,650 2,212,918 
)> E Mackay: GM: Technical Services 673,376 72,000 63,102 32,374 82,772 923,624 14,400 938,024 

M Ratsomo: GM: Corporate Services 758,094 72,000 68,693 90,106 988,893 14,400 1,003,293 
T Motloi CA (SA) : CFO (1 February 2011) 649,310 36,000 56,712 74,390 816,412 14,400 830,812 
M Mofokeng: Internal Auditor Manager 559,291 72,000 55,023 33,620 72,175 792,109 14,400 806,509 
M Mahao: Manager Governance and Strategy 546,031 36,000 48,165 63,179 693,375 16,400 709,775 
Other Managers 6,339,081 408,000 560,347 110,587 678,648 8,096,663 155,700 8,252,363 

12,250,169 696,000 1,063,495 176,581 1,291,600 15,477,845 258,350 15,736,195 
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23. Board Members', Audit Committee Members' emoluments and Management Compensation (continued) 

Other allowance consists of cell phone allowance and it was included under operating expenses. 
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23. Board Members', Audit Committee Members' emoluments and Management Compensation (continued) 

Non-executive 

2013 

Board fees Committee Total Cell phone Subsistence Grand tota l 
and other fees allowances and travel 

allowances 
D Pil lay 129,000 46 ,800 175,800 12,000 187,800 
H Mayeza 30,000 3,000 33,000 2,200 7,884 43,084 
M Molotsi 28,000 2,000 30,000 1,650 31,650 
S Monyaki 84,000 32,900 116,900 6,600 35,624 159,124 
M Netshivhodza 24,000 7,500 31,500 2,200 14,717 48,417 
D Lekota 28,000 2,500 30,500 2,200 9,706 42,406 
T Mongake 72,000 44,800 116,800 6,600 123,400 
L Mule 104,000 28,100 132,100 6,600 26,981 165,681 
J Mthembu 68,000 46,800 114,800 3,300 6,075 124,175 
LR Lane 4,400 4,400 
GP Duda 3,300 3,300 

567,000 214,400 781,400 51,050 100,987 933,437 

2012 

Board fees Committee Total Cell phone Subsistence Grand total 
and other fees allowances and travel 

allowances 
D Pillay 12,000 12,000 
H Mayeza 66 ,000 11 ,400 77,400 6,600 13,462 97,462 
M Molotsi 68,000 32,000 100,000 6,600 300 106,900 
S Monyaki 64,000 30,400 94,400 6,600 14,600 115,600 
M Netshivhodza 60,000 12,900 72,900 6,600 30,841 110,341 
D Lekota 60,000 12,200 72,200 6,600 29,416 108,216 
T Mongake 78,500 45,700 124,200 6,600 5,122 135,922 
L Mule 60,000 28,100 88,100 6,600 17,710 112,410 
Audit Committee Fees 106,930 106,930 12,100 3,298 122,328 

456,500 279,630 736,130 70,300 114,749 921,179 
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23. Board Members', Audit Committee Members' emoluments and Management Compensation (continued) 

Audit Committee Members 

2013 

Committee Cell Phone Subsistence Total 
Fees allowance and Travel 

Allowance 
EK Ndleve 1,650 1,650 
DH Ewertse 25,900 6,050 304 32,254 
R Luvhengo 2,500 6,050 8,550 
JJ Human 12,500 1,650 175 14,325 

40,900 15,400 479 56,779 

2012 

Committee Other services Cell Phone Subsistence Total 
Fees allowance and Travel 

Allowance 
EK Ndleve 7,766 6,600 3,298 17,664 
TE Ntsieng 5,818 2,750 8,568 
LM Mangquku 2,500 88,346 2,750 93,596 
R Luvhengo 2,500 2,500 

18,584 88,346 12,100 3,298 122,328 

Cell Phone Allowance and Subsistence Allowance were included under operating expenses 

Note 15 Employee related costs there is a difference of R 36 000 (R822 300 • R786 300) - Board claims was added to 
investigation to be pa id by two applicants of second route operator for Limited Payout Machines' (LPMs') 
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24. Prior period errors 

There was a review done on the useful lives of property, plant and equipment for the financial year ending 2011/12 . The 
review performed subsequently had an increase in the book value of property, plant and equipment due to reversal of 
accumulated depreciation. 

Trade and other receivables is due to reversal of pre paid rent expense which was erroneously recorded under rent deposit 
in the previous financia l years. Rent expense in the statement of financial performance was debited and rent deposit in the 
statement of financial position was credited. 

Compensation commissioner assessment returns for the financial year 2009/10 and 2010/11 was concluded in the fi nancial 
year 2012/13 and was paid . The returns payment was allocated to the financial year 2011 /12 

CEO contract was signed by MEC DETEA in December 2012, backpay was paid retrospective from 01 January 2011 to 
December 2012. This led to backpay salary been paid and salary for the financial year 2011/12 to been restated 
accordingly. 

Other payable: relates to omitted invoices of the financial year 2011 /12 which were picked up in the current financial year. 

The correction of the error(s) resu lts in adjustments as fo llows: 

Statement of financial position 
Trade and other receivables 

Review of useful lives and residua l values PPE 

Trade and other payables 
Accumulated surplus 

Statement of Financial Performance 
Depreciation and amortisation 

Compensation for employees 

Other operating expenses 

ANNUAL REPORT 2012-2013 

Initial Restated 
246 ,026 184,751 

2,158,199 2,224,346 

2,404,225 2,409,097 

6,533,510 7,425,899 
194,797 (692,720) 

6,728,307 6,733,179 

Initial Restated 
919,728 853,581 

35,172,560 36,026,902 

14,481 ,466 14,580,788 

50,573,754 51 ,461 ,271 
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Movement 
(61 ,275) 

66,147 

4,872 

892,389 
(887,517) 

4,872 

Movement 
66,147 

(854,342) 

(99,322) 

(887,517) 



FREE STATE GAMBLING AND LIQUOR AUTHORITY 
Formerly Free State Gambling & Racing Board 
Financial Statements for the Year ended 31 March 2013 

Notes to the Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

24. Prior period errors (continued) 

Cash flow statement 

Trade and other receivables 
Rent deposit 

Trade and other payables 
Backpay paid to CEO 
Compensation Commissioner 
Other payables 

Other operating expenses 
Consulting fee 
Stationery 
Interest and penalty paid to Compensation to commissioner 
Rent deposit 
Internet service 
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2013 2012 

61,275 

743,183 
118,283 
30,923 

892,389 

(1 ,254) 
(772) 

(7,122) 
(61 ,274) 
(28,900) 

(99,322) 
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25. Risk management and Financial Instruments 

Measurement 

Financial instruments are measured at fair value with change in carrying value being recognized to the profit and loss in the 
financial year which they relate to. All financial assets and liabilities of the Authority are current. 

Cash and cash equivalent 
Opening balance bank 
Movement 

Trade and other receivables 
Opening balance 
Movement 

Trade and other payables 
Opening balance 
Movement 

Liquidity risk 

4,171 ,838 
5,196,390 

9,368,228 

184,751 
1,167,844 

1,352,595 

(7,425,900) 
(3,320,743) 

(10,746,643) 

9,292 ,006 
(5, 120, 168) 

4,171,838 

447,682 
(262,931) 

184,751 

(6,707,717) 
(718,183) 

(7,425,900) 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will be unable to meet a financial commitment. This risk is minimized through the 
holding of cash balances and sufficient borrowing facilities . In addition, detailed cash flow forecast are regularly prepared 
and future commitments and credit balances are reviewed on an ongoing basis. 

The exposure of the entity's financial liabilities to liquidity risk are as follows : 

Less than one year 9,368,228 4,171 ,838 

Interest rate risk 

The authority manages its interest rate risk by investing in current and short term deposit accounts. These accounts are 
held with well established financial institution of high quality credit standing and the accounts bear interest at prevailing 
market rates . 

Credit risk 

Potential concentration of credit risk consist mainly of accounts receivable and cash and cash equivalents .. 

The Authority places its cash and short term deposits with well established financial institution of high credit standing .. 

Credit risk with respect to accounts receivable is limited due to the nature of the Board's business and its reliance on 
government grant as the main source of funding 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

Financial instrument 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Receivables from exchange transactions 

Fair value 

2013 
9,368,228 
1,352,595 

2012 
4,171 ,838 

184,751 

The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair values at 31 March 2013 due to the short 
term maturities of these assets and liabilities. 
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26. Going concern 

We draw attention to the fact that at 31 March 2013, the entity had accumulated surplus of 1, 784,014 and that the entity's tota l 
assets exceed its liabil ities by 1 ,802, 185. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds wi ll be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments wil l occur in the ordinary course of business. 

27. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Opening balance 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - current year 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure - condoned 

936,514 
40,000 

(949,509) 

27,005 

27,000 
909,514 

936,514 

The amount of R 7 122 is penalty and interest charged by compensation to commissioner due to late submission of returns. 

The amount of R 5 872 is due to accommodation not utilised due to other engagement .. 

The Board approved the condonation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure , the submission was sent to treasury for final 
approval. The closing balance of R25 747 is still under investigation and the Board did not condoned the expense. 

A total of R81 0,822 paid to a suspended employee for a period of 12 months during the financial year. Two months salary 
expense of R96,830 paid to two employee employees who were suspended for a period of not more than two months. 

The other expenditure of R27,000 related to a monetary settlement agreement for unfair dismal case of a former employee. 
The settlement was concluded at the CCMA between the employee and FSGLA 

28. Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 
Add : Irregu lar Expenditure - current year 
Less: Irregular expenditure- corrected CEO contract signed 
Less: Irregular expenditure - condoned 

7,974,242 
2,539,180 

(2,898,472) 
(7' 152,060) 

462,890 

2,607 ,907 
5,366 ,335 

7,974,242 

The fu ll extent of the irregular expenditure of R 462,890, as disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, is still in the 
process of being investigated. 
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Revenue 
Other income 
Interest received - investment 
Government grants & subsidies 

Total revenue 

Expenditure 
Employee related cost 
Administrative expenses 
Depreciation and amortisation 
Debt impairment 
Repairs and maintenance 
General Expenses 

Total expenditure 

Loss on disposal of assets and liabilities 

Surplus (deficit) for the Year 

Attributable to: 
Owners of the controlling entity 

Note(s) 

11 
17 

14 
15 
3 
16 

12 

2013 

22,256 
297,232 

48,251 ,000 

48,570,488 

(34,098,880) 
(1 ,730,363) 

(820,989) 

(116,515) 
(9 ,238,872) 

(46,005,619) 

(69,963) 

2,494,906 

2,494,906 
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Restated 
2012 

12,920 
259,413 

44,574,132 

44,846,465 

(36,026,902) 
(1 ,700,086) 

(853,581) 
(81 ,598) 

(139 ,112) 
(12,648,370) 

(51 ,449,649) 

(11 ,622) 

(6,614,806) 

(6,614,806) 
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